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SCRD STAFF REPORT 

   
DATE:  May 7, 2012 

TO:  Corporate and Administrative Services Committee – May 10, 2012 

FROM: Jackie Day – Manager Financial Services   

RE: Draft Audited Statements - Year Ended December 31, 2011  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the Manager of Financial Service’s Report regarding Draft Audited Statements – 
Year Ended December 31, 2011 and the following documents, presented  as part of the 
BDO Delegation be received for information: 

• Independent Auditor’s Report 

• Draft Audited Financial Statements  

• Audit Results and Communications Report to the Board 
 
AND THAT the Draft Audited Statements for Year Ended December 31, 2011 be approved 
as presented and forwarded to the Board Meeting on May 10, 2012 for approval. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Canada fully adopted the International Auditing Standards in 2010.  The impact of the new 
Standards being implemented includes changes in timing of the Independent Auditor’s Report 
and financial statement approval process.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In prior years the Audited Statements were presented at the June Corporate and Administrative 
Services Committee meeting as part of the Annual Report and other financial information to 
meet Section 814.1 of the Local Government Act, Section 167 of the Community Charter and 
Financial Information Act. 
 
With the implementation of the new Standards the Financial Statements must be presented as 
soon as possible after the March audit as draft statements.  Once approved, this date will 
become the date of the Independent Auditor’s Report and Final Audited Statements for Year 
Ended December 31, 2011 
 
These approved Audited Statements can then form part of the Annual Report which will be 
presented at the June Corporate and Administrative Services Committee to meet the financial 
reporting requirements that by June 30 in each year, a regional district must hold a public 
meeting for the purpose of presenting financial information for the preceding year.   
 
SUMMARY 
Staff recommend that the Draft Audited Statements for Year-Ended December 31, 2011 being 
presented by BDO Canada LLP with the Independent Auditor’s Report be received and 
approved by the Corporate and Administrative Services Committee, and forwarded to the Board 
Meeting on May 10, 2012 for approval.  
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Direct Line: 604-443-4716  

E-mail: bcox@bdo.ca  
May 1, 2012 
 
Members of the Board 
Sunshine Coast Regional District 
1975 Field Road 
Sechelt, BC   V0N 3A1 
 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
 
Re:  Audit of the Financial Statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional District for 

the year ended December 31, 2011 
 
We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional 
District [the “District”] for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.  We take this opportunity 
to present our findings to you.  
 
The responsibility for producing financial statements and ensuring adequate internal controls 
and sound business practices is the responsibility of the Board through management and is a 
part of management's overall responsibility for the ongoing activities of the District.  Policies 
and procedures developed by the District to safeguard its assets and to provide reasonable 
assurance that errors and irregularities or illegal acts are promptly identified, must be 
properly monitored to ensure that all staff are complying with the guidelines provided. 
 
The objective of an audit is to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements 
are free of any material misstatement.  Auditors must be completely independent and 
objective in the application of their testing. 
 
We received full support from management and staff throughout our work and the scope of 
our audit was not restricted in any way.  Our audit opinion is without reservation indicating 
that our audit tests and procedures yielded reliable results. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns in regard to any of the items mentioned in this 
report, please do not hesitate to contact us at any time. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
Bill Cox, CA 
Partner through a corporation of BDO Canada LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
 
BC/ 
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Audit Approach 
 
We were engaged to perform the audit of the financial statements of the District for the year 
ended December 31, 2011.  We adopted an audit approach that allowed us to issue an audit 
opinion on the financial statements of the District in the most cost-effective manner, while 
still obtaining the assurance necessary to support our audit opinion.  
 
Under the BDO Audit Approach, we use risk and assurance models to determine the evidence 
to collect and evaluate whether sufficient appropriate evidence was obtained to be able to 
draw reasonable conclusions to allow us to form an opinion. This approach focuses on 
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence to reduce the risk of material misstatement in 
the financial statements to an appropriately low level. This means that we focused our audit 
effort in areas that we believed to have a higher risk of being materially misstated and do less 
audit work in areas that are only low risk. 
 
To assess risk accurately, we needed to have a clear understanding of the District’s operations 
and the environment it operates in.  Much of our understanding was obtained through 
discussions with management and staff.   
 
The following sections provide more detail on our audit approach for the District for the 
current year.  
 
Audit Scope  
 
The scope of our audit of the financial statements of the District for the year ended December 
31, 2011 included the following:  

 An audit opinion on the financial statements of the District. 
 An audit opinion on the financial statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital 

District 
 An audit opinion on the Statement of Foreshore Lease of the Sunshine Coast Regional 

District 
 A management letter report in regard to audit recommendations of significance. 

 
Overall Audit Strategy  
 
Changes in auditing standards now require auditors to document all significant manual and 
computer systems.  Building on this, we plan to focus much of our review on transaction 
streams using “tests of controls” (compliance procedures) in combination with analytical 
review and testing.  Balances will be tested using a combination of compliance procedures 
and substantive procedures (such as analysis of data and obtaining direct evidence as to the 
validity of the items).   
 
Higher Risk Financial Statement Areas  
 
Based on our knowledge of the District’s operations, past experience with similar 
organizations, and knowledge gained from management and you, we identified the following 
financial statements areas as having a potentially higher risk of material misstatement.   
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These risks arose mainly because of the complexity of the accounting rules, the extent of 
estimation and judgment involved in the valuation of these financial statement areas, and the 
existence of new accounting pronouncements that affect them.  We have also provided a brief 
summary of how audited these higher risk areas: 
 

Higher Risk Financial Statement Areas Proposed Audit Procedures 

 Cash and investments  Confirmation of cash and investments 
 Review of reconciliations 
 Testing of investment transactions and 

investment rollovers 
 Liability for Landfill Closure  Review of calculations 

 Audit of significant assumptions 
 Review of engineering reports 

 Employee Future Benefits  Review of actuarial calculations 
 Audit of significant assumptions 
 Review of usage reports 

 Accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities 

 Review for unrecorded liabilities 
 Review of client prepared listings 
 Cut-off testing 

 Staff Salaries  Computer audit testing 
 Analytical review of staff and salary 

levels 
 Systems testing and tests of controls 

 Tangible Capital Assets and 
Accumulated Amortization 

 Testing of additions and disposals 
 Testing of amortization calculations 

 
Audit Team  
 
In order to ensure effective communication between the Board and BDO Canada LLP, we 
briefly outline below the key members of our audit team and the role they will play:  
 

 Bill Cox, CA, Engagement Partner – overall engagement management 
 Patrick Chan, CA, Audit Manager – fieldwork management 
 Lisa Bergstrom, CA Finalist – Audit Senior 
 Sonya Douangmany, CA Student – Audit Staff 
 William Parry, CA Student – Audit Staff 

 
Reliance on an Expert     
 
In order for us to perform adequate audit procedures on employee future benefits, we relied 
on the work of, and the report prepared by, Mercer (Canada) Limited. Canadian generally 
accepted auditing standards required us to communicate with the expert. We discussed the 
following with Mercer (Canada) Limited: 

 The objective and nature of the audit engagement and how we intend to use the 
expert's findings and report; 

 Our assessment of the significance and risk aspects of the engagement that will affect 
the expert's work; 
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 The requirement to advise us if they have any relationship with the organization which 
could impair their judgment or objectivity in the conduct of their engagement; 

 The nature, timing and extent of the expert's work and our planned review of it, 
possibly including review of their working papers; 

 Confirmation that the assumptions used in their calculations are consistent with those 
used in the prior periods and with industry standards; 
 

Their obligation to advise BDO Canada LLP of any matters up to the estimated audit report 
date that may affect their calculations and their report.  We ask that the appropriate level of 
management review the data provided to Mercer (Canada) Limited and that they also review 
the assumptions used and results reported by the expert for reasonableness. 
 
Independence  
 
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) no longer require us to communicate 
to the Board in regard to independence matters.  However, we feel that it is still a good 
practice to at least annually, report all relationships between BDO Canada LLP and the 
District (and its related entities), that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence for the audit of the District. 
 
In determining which relationships to report, we have considered the applicable legislation 
and relevant rules of professional conduct and related interpretations prescribed by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of British Columbia covering such matters as the following:  

 holding of a financial interest, either directly or indirectly in a client;  

 holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to 
exert significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;  

 personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or 
retired partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client;  

 economic dependence on a client; and  

 provision of services in addition to the external audit engagement.  

 
We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding 
independence matters.  
 
We are not aware of any relationships between the Sunshine Coast Regional District and us 
that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence 
to date.  
 
We hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to the Sunshine Coast Regional 
District within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of British Columbia as of the date of this letter. 
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Responsibilities of the Auditor  
 
It is important for the Board to understand the responsibilities that rest with the District and 
its management and those that belong to the auditor.  The audit of the financial statements 
does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities 
outlined below:   

 Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements, which 
includes responsibilities related to internal control, such as designing and maintaining 
accounting records, selecting and applying accounting policies, safeguarding assets 
and preventing and detecting error and fraud.  

 The auditor's responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based 
on an audit thereof.  
 

An audit is performed to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement and, owing to the inherent limitations 
of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements of the financial statements 
will not be detected (particularly intentional misstatements concealed through collusion), 
even though the audit is properly planned and performed. 

 
The audit includes:  

(i) assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error; 

(ii) obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment including internal 
control in order to plan the audit and to assess the risk that the financial 
statements may contain misstatements that, individually or in the aggregate, 
are material to the financial statements taken as a whole; 

(iii) examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements; 

(iv) assessing the accounting principles used and their application; and 

(v) assessing the significant estimates made by management. 
 

When the auditor's risk assessment includes an expectation of the operating effectiveness of 
controls, sufficient appropriate audit evidence will be obtained through tests of controls to 
support the assessment, but the scope of the auditor's review of internal control will be 
insufficient to express an opinion as to the effectiveness or efficiency of the entity's controls. 
 
The auditor will express an opinion as to whether the financial statements present fairly in all 
material respects, in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, the 
financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the entity. 
 
Management Representations 
 
During the course of an audit, management makes many representations to us. These 
representations may be verbal or written and therefore explicit, or they may be implied 
through the financial statements. Management may provide representations in response to 
specific queries from us, or may provide unsolicited representations. Such representations are 
part of the evidence gathered by us to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to 
base the audit opinion. These representations are documented by including in the audit 
working papers memoranda of discussions with management and written representations 
received from management. 
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Management's representations included, but are not limited to: 

 matters communicated in discussions with us, whether solicited or unsolicited; 

 matters communicated electronically to us; 

 schedules, analyses and reports prepared by the entity, and management's notations 
and comments thereon, whether or not in response to a request by us; 

 internal and external memoranda or correspondence; 

 minutes of meetings of the Board or similar bodies such as audit committees and 
compensation committees; and 

 a representation letter from management. 
 
Audit Findings 
 
There are a number of matters that arose during the audit that we would like to bring to your 
attention, although nothing that was detrimental to the audit. Each of these matters is 
summarized briefly below. We would be pleased to discuss any of these items in more detail 
at our upcoming meeting. 
 
Provision for Landfill Closure Costs and Post-Closure Costs 
 
Adjustments were made to prior period figures to account for new information the cumulative 
capacity amounts used in prior years being understated for the Sechelt landfill site.  These 
adjustments have been correctly stated on the financial statements and are explained in Note 
2. 
  
No Fraudulent or Illegal Activities Noted 
 
Our audit procedures were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 
statements and although they might bring possible fraudulent or illegal activities to our 
attention, our audit procedures were not designed to detect fraudulent or illegal activities. 
  
We did not detect any fraudulent or illegal activities, or material misstatements resulting 
from fraudulent or illegal activities during our audit.  
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
There were no significant disagreements with management. 
 
Litigation Proceedings 
 
No material claims are expected based on our review of legal invoices and discussions with 
management. As such, we have not communicated directly with the District’s legal counsel. 
Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates and Judgments     
 
Management is responsible for determining the significant accounting policies. The choice of 
different accounting policy alternatives can have a significant effect on the financial position 
and results of operations of the District.  The application of those policies often involves 
significant estimates and judgments by management.  
 
We are of the opinion that the significant accounting policies, estimates and judgments made 
by management are reasonable in the context of the financial statements taken as a whole.  
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Audit Reporting 
 
Materiality can be defined as follows: 
 
"A misstatement or the aggregate of all misstatements in financial statements is considered to 
be material if, in the light of surrounding circumstances, it is probable that the decision of a 
person who is relying on the financial statements, and who has a reasonable knowledge of 
business and economic activities (the user), would be changed or influenced by such 
misstatement or the aggregate of all misstatements. Misstatements in financial statements 
arise from departures from generally accepted accounting principles and include departures 
from fact, inappropriate determination of accounting estimates, and omissions of necessary 
information.  Misstatements may arise from error or fraud, or from the consequences of an 
illegal act." 
 
As you know, materiality in an audit is used as a guide for planning the nature and extent of 
audit procedures and for assessing the sufficiency of audit evidence gathered.  It is also used 
in evaluating the misstatements found and determining the appropriate audit opinion to 
express.  
 
Since the determination of materiality is a matter of professional judgment, it is primarily 
dependent on our evaluation of the relative importance of accuracy in the financial 
statements to the various users of those statements.  We have identified the Board, the 
Ministry and management as the most important users of the Sunshine Coast Regional District's 
financial statements. 
 
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards require the use of both quantitative and 
qualitative factors in determining materiality.  For the audit of the Sunshine Coast Regional 
District for the year ended December 31, 2011, we concluded that a materiality level of 
$607,000 based on 2% of revenues calculated, and adjusted by qualitative factors was 
appropriate for the purposes of the year-end audit.  Performance materiality, a relatively new 
concept resulting from Canadian adoption of International Auditing Standards was set at 75% 
of materiality or about $502,500 (this is the level used for statistical testing).  Trivial errors 
was set at 1% of materiality or $6,700 (we will not suggest that differences below this level be 
adjusted) nor would we report on such differences. 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report       
 
Our audit testing has shown that any differences from our audit work are not material.  
Accordingly we plan to issue an unqualified opinion. Our audit report uses standard wording as 
required by our professional regulations and a draft is bound in with the draft financial 
statements. 
 
Possible Misstatements 
 
During the audit we keep a list of differences between the financial statements and our audit 
findings from third parties or other sources.  This list, known as “Possible Misstatements”, is 
totaled to ensure that the differences are not material.  Should the list total become close to 
materiality, it is necessary to do further audit work on the differences to determine if there 
really is an error in the financial statements.  The existence of items on our Possible 
Misstatements listing is normal and does not necessarily mean that the financial statements 
contain errors. 
 
There were no possible aggregate misstatements noted during this year’s audit. 
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Current Developments in the Profession   
 
There have been significant developments in the area of accounting and auditing this year.  
See Appendix B for details. 
 
Conclusion  
 
We hope that this letter will provide you with an update on the current developments within 
the accounting profession, as well as clarify our independence, responsibility and audit 
approach.  
 
We look forward to discussing these issues with you.  Please do not hesitate to contact us 
about any of the above items or other matters of concern to the Board.  
 
Yours truly,  
 
 
 
Bill Cox, CA  
Partner through a corporation of BDO Canada LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
 
BC/
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Appendix A – Management Letter 
 
 
 

 
Direct Line: (604) 443-4716 

E-mail: bcox@bdo.ca 
 
 

May 1, 2012 
 
 
Mr. John France, Chief Administrative Officer 
Sunshine Coast Regional District 
1975 Field Road 
Sechelt, BC 
V0N 3A1 
 

Dear Mr. France: 

Re: Auditor’s Management Letter 

During the course of our audit of the financial statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional 
District for the year ended December 31, 2011, we identified matters which may be of 
interest to management. The objective of an audit is to obtain reasonable assurance whether 
the financial statements are free of any material misstatement and it is not designed to 
identify matters that may be of interest to management in discharging its responsibilities. 
Accordingly an audit would not usually identify all such matters.  

The responsibility for producing financial statements and ensuring adequate internal controls 
and sound business practices is the responsibility of the Board through management and is a 
part of management's overall responsibility for the ongoing activities of the organization.  
Policies and procedures developed by the organization to safeguard its assets and to provide 
reasonable assurance that errors and irregularities or illegal acts are promptly identified, 
must be properly monitored to ensure that all staff are complying with the guidelines 
provided.      

The comments and concerns expressed herein did not have a material effect on the Sunshine 
Coast Regional District’s financial statements and, as such, our opinion thereon was without 
reservation.  However, in order for the organization to ensure the safeguarding of its assets 
and the accuracy of its records, we believe our comments and concerns should be taken into 
consideration by management.  Our comments are not intended to reflect upon the honesty or 
competence of the organization's employees. 
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The matters we have identified are discussed below. 

Status of Prior Year Recommendations 
 
There was a carry-forward point from the prior year’s management letter. We track these 
points to ensure that recommendations are followed up and implemented (or alternatively 
found to be impractical). 
 

Recommendation Status 

Liability for Contaminated Sites 

 
We recommend that the Sunshine Coast 
Regional District begin work on the new 
requirements per Section 3260 of the Public 
Sector Accounting Board handbook, which 
establishes recognition, measurement and 
disclosure standards for liabilities relating to 
contaminated sites of local governments.  
Although the requirements do not come into 
effect until 2015, the identification and 
assessment of all potentially contaminated 
properties will be an arduous task, and should 
be planned for early. 

 
Management has had some initial 
planning discussions about how to 
proceed with this, and recognizes that it 
needs to be addressed as soon as 
possible.  
 
Discussions have included various options 
available, such as following up with other 
municipalities to see their intended plans 
to proceed, and working with BDO. 
 
SCRD has a complete inventory of District 
land and has also considered the 
possibility of checking with the Ministry 
of Environment to see if they are aware 
of any contaminated sites. 
 

 
The scope of the audit did not include a detailed study of internal controls.  However, we did 
review those accounting systems and internal controls to the extent necessary to effectively 
plan and execute the audit. We found the accounting systems and records to be well 
organized, up to date and properly maintained. 
 
No matters came to our attention during the audit that were of significance to report to you 
formally. 
 
While our audit did not reveal any significant misstatements or irregularities, it is important 
to understand that our audit procedures are designed specifically to gather sufficient and 
appropriate audit evidence to support our opinion on the financial statements and would not 
necessarily uncover all errors or fraud, if present. 
 
We received excellent cooperation from everyone at the Sunshine Coast Regional District 
during the audit.  We thank Tina Perrault, Jackie Day and all of the Finance Department staff 
for their assistance throughout the audit process.   
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Please do not hesitate to contact us should you wish to further discuss any of the matters 
discussed in this letter. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
Bill Cox, CA  
Partner through a corporation of BDO Canada LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
 
BC/ 
 
c.c.  Board of Directors 
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Appendix B New Accounting and Auditing Requirements 
 
 

Introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards 

The Introduction has been amended to: 

• direct government not-for-profit organizations to follow either the CICA Public 
Sector Accounting Handbook with Section PS 4200 to PS 4270 or the CICA Public 
Sector Accounting Handbook without those Sections; and 

• include effective dates and transitional provisions related to changes in the 
primary source of generally accepted accounting principles for government not-
for-profit organizations. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT APPLY ONLY TO GOVERNMENT NOT-FOR-PROFIT 
ORGANIZATIONS 

The following new Sections establish recognition, measurement and disclosure standards that 
are for use only by government not-for-profit organizations. 

• Financial statement presentation by not-for-profit organizations, Section PS 4200; 

• Contributions — revenue recognition, Section PS 4210; 

• Contributions receivable, Section PS 4220; 

• Capital assets held by not-for-profit organizations, Section PS 4230; 

• Collections held by not-for-profit organizations, Section PS 4240; 

• Reporting controlled and related entities by not-for-profit organizations, Section 
PS 4250; 

• Disclosure of related party transactions by not-for-profit organizations, Section PS 
4260; and 

• Disclosure of allocated expenses by not-for-profit organizations, Section PS 4270. 

The main features of these Sections are as follows: 

• Financial statements for a government not-for-profit organization can be prepared 
on a restricted fund or deferral method. 

• A government not-for-profit organization should recognize contributions in 
accordance with the deferral or restricted fund method. 

• Controlled not-for-profit organizations of a government not-for-profit organization 
should be reported by way of disclosure or through consolidation. Controlled 
profit-oriented enterprises of a government not-for-profit organization should be 
reported using the modified equity method or through consolidation. 

• Information regarding collections of a government not-for-profit organization 
should be disclosed. 

• A government not-for-profit organization should disclose information about its 
transactions with related parties. 

14



Sunshine Coast Regional District 
May 1, 2012 

Page 14 
 

 

These Sections are effective only for government not-for-profit organizations that elect to 
follow the standards for not-for-profit organizations in the CICA Public Sector Accounting 
Handbook and are effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012.   Note 
that for entities that are part of the Province of British Columbia reporting entity, the 
effective dates have been moved up either 1 or 2 years.  Further, the Province has directed 
that the PS4200 sections noted above not be used by such entities. 

New Standards 

PS3260 – Liability for Contaminated Sites 

This new Section establishes recognition, measurement and disclosure standards for liabilities 
relating to contaminated sites of governments and those organizations applying the CICA 
Public Sector Accounting Handbook. 

This section applies to government assets no longer in productive use and non-government 
assets for which the government is responsible.  It does not apply to tangible capital assets 
(however the PSAB GAAP hierarchy would require consideration of Asset Retirement 
Obligations in regard to tangible capital assets). 

The main features of the new Section are as follows: 

 A liability should be recognized when contamination exceeds an accepted 
environmental standard and the entity is directly responsible, or accepts 
responsibility for, the damage. 

 A liability should be measured at the entity's best estimate of the costs directly 
attributable to remediation of the contamination. 

 Outstanding site assessments do not negate the requirement to assess whether a 
liability exists. 

This Section is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014. Earlier adoption 
is encouraged. For entities with a December year end this means that 2015 is the first year 
that the standard must be followed.  Although that is seemingly a long time in the future, this 
standard is onerous and could require the collection of a great deal of information.  An entity 
should begin to consider immediately how it will apply with this standard. 

PS 3410 - Government transfers 

After a 7 year journey of exposure drafts and re-exposure drafts, this Section is finally revised 
and will replace existing Section PS 3410. The following changes have been made to the 
Section: 

• A transferring government recognizes an expense when the transfer is authorized 
and recipients have met the eligibility criteria, if any. 

• Authorization by the transferring government can occur either by the date of the 
financial statements or during the period between the date of the financial 
statements and the issuance of those statements provided that the exercise of 
that authority occurred at the financial statement date. 

• If a transferring government provides the financial or non-financial asset prior to 
the recipient meeting eligibility criteria, the transferring government cannot 
recognize a prepaid asset. 
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• A recipient government recognizes the transfer as revenue when the transfer was 
authorized by the transferring government, unless a liability is created for the 
recipient. 

• For a recipient, the transferring government's authorization must be in place by 
the financial statement date. 

• A liability related to the transfer for the recipient may result from: 

– receiving an asset prior to the recipient meeting eligibility criteria; 

– specific stipulations contained in the transfer agreement; and 

– stipulations that are unclear but the recipient creates a liability through its 
own actions and communications that are related to the terms of the 
transfer by the financial statement date. 

• A liability may also result from the recipient's own actions and communication 
that are unrelated to the terms of the transfer by the financial statement date. In 
this case, an asset and revenue and a liability and expense would be recognized. 

• Revenue is recognized as the liability is settled. 

The Section applies to all governments and those government organizations using public 
sector accounting standards. The Section applies to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 
2012 and may be applied retroactively or prospectively. Earlier adoption is encouraged. 

PS 3450 - Financial instruments 

This new Section establishes standards for recognizing and measuring financial assets, 
financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives. 

The main features of the new Section are: 

• Items within the scope of the Section are assigned to one of two measurement 
categories: fair value, or cost or amortized cost. 

• Almost all derivatives, including embedded derivatives that are not closely 
related to the host contract, are measured at fair value. 

• Fair value measurement also applies to portfolio investments in equity 
instruments that are quoted in an active market. 

• Other financial assets and financial liabilities are generally measured at cost or 
amortized cost. 

• Until an item is derecognized, gains and losses arising due to fair value 
remeasurement are reported in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. 

• Budget-to-actual comparisons are not required within the statement of 
remeasurement gains and losses. 

• When the reporting entity defines and implements a risk management or 
investment strategy to manage and evaluate the performance of a group of 
financial assets, financial liabilities or both on a fair value basis, the entity may 
elect to include these items in the fair value category. 

• New requirements clarify when financial liabilities are derecognized. 

• The offsetting of a financial liability and a financial asset is prohibited in absence 
of a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and an intention 
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 
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• New disclosure requirements of items reported on and the nature and extent of 
risks arising from financial instruments. 

The new requirements are to be applied at the same time as PS2601 - Foreign Currency 
Translation and PS1201 - Financial Statement Presentation and for government organizations 
are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. In the case of governments, 
the new requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2015. Earlier 
adoption is permitted. 

PS2601 - Foreign currency translation 

This Section revises and replaces FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION, Section PS 2600. The 
following changes have been made to the Section: 

• The definition of currency risk is amended to conform to the definition in PS 3450 
- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS. 

• The exception to the measurement of items on initial recognition that applies 
when synthetic instrument accounting is used is removed. 

• At each financial statement date subsequent to initial recognition, non-monetary 
items denominated in a foreign currency that are included in the fair value 
category in accordance with Section PS 3450 are adjusted to reflect the exchange 
rate at that date. 

• The deferral and amortization of foreign exchange gains and losses relating to 
long-term foreign currency denominated monetary items is discontinued. 

• Until the period of settlement, exchange gains and losses are recognized in the 
statement of remeasurement gains and losses rather than the statement of 
operations. 

• Hedge accounting and the presentation of items as synthetic instruments are 
removed. 

The new requirements are to be applied at the same time as PS3450 - Financial Instruments 
and PS1201 - Financial Statement Presentation and for government organizations are effective 
for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. In the case of governments, the new 
requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2015. Earlier 
adoption is permitted. 

PS 1201 - Financial statement presentation 

This Section revises and replaces FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION, Section PS 1200. The 
following changes have been made to the Section: 

• Remeasurement gains and losses are reported in a new statement. 

• Other comprehensive income that can arise when a government includes results of 
government business enterprises and government business partnerships in its 
summary financial statements is reported in the statement of remeasurement 
gains and losses. 

• The accumulated surplus or deficit is presented as the total of the accumulated 
operating surplus or deficit and the accumulated remeasurement gains and losses. 
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The new requirements are to be applied at the same time as PS3450 - Financial Instruments 
and PS2601 - Foreign Currency Translation and for government organizations are effective for 
fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. In the case of governments, the new 
requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2015. Earlier 
adoption is permitted. 

Exposure Drafts 

Handbook Improvements 

PSAB approved an exposure draft to clarify various Sections of the PSA Handbook as a result of 
the issue of new Section PS 3450, Financial Instruments, and recent changes to Canadian 
assurance standards that warrant more specific guidance on what constitutes the date of 
completion of financial statements. 

The following summarizes the amendments being proposed: 

PS 4200 - Subsequent Events 

The proposed new paragraph in Section PS 2400 clarifies the meaning of the date of 
completion of the financial statement consistent with recent changes to Canadian assurance 
standards. The date of completion of the financial statements represents the cut-off date for 
identifying and considering the effects of subsequent events. 

PS 2500 Basic Principles of Consolidation 

The elimination of unrealized gains and losses associated with inter-governmental unit 
transactions is a basic consolidation principle. The issue of FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, Section 
PS 3450, introduces the fair value measurement category. 

The proposed amendments clarify that any unrealized gain or loss attributable to the 
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities in the fair value category due to 
inter-governmental sales or transfers would be eliminated from the consolidated statement of 
operations. It would be reported in the consolidated statement of remeasurement gains and 
losses, consistent with the principle that the gain or loss has yet to be realized from the 
perspective of the reporting entity. 

Additionally, the proposed amendment to paragraph PS 2500.17 specifies that losses 
attributable to impairment are presented in the statement of operations. 

PS 2510 - Additional Areas of Consolidation 

In the event that a governmental unit becomes a government business enterprise, provisions 
in Section PS 2510 address the reporting implications. The proposed amendments clarify 
provisions in two paragraphs as the standards applicable to publicly accountable enterprises in 
the CICA Handbook – Accounting may require the reporting other comprehensive income from 
the date reporting using the modified equity method applies. 

PS 2700 - Segment Disclosures 

The proposed amendments ensure that disclosure requirements in Section PS 2700 align with 
recent presentation changes adopted in FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION, Section PS 
1201. 
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PS 3050 - Loans Receivable 

The proposed amendments clarify that the grant portion of a loan with significant 
concessionary terms and the expenses associated with concessions in a loan restructuring are 
reported in the statement of operations. Additionally, the description of the preferred 
method applied when amortizing the loan discount is conformed to read “effective interest 
method”. 

The proposed amendment deletes paragraph PS 3070.39 as the constructive retirement of a 
debt obligation that occurs when paragraphs PS 3070.35-.38 apply is consistent with BASIC 
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION, paragraph PS 2500.06, which requires the elimination of 
inter-governmental unit transactions and balances and FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, paragraph PS 
3450.042, which establishes when liabilities are derecognized. 

PS 3100 - Restricted Assets and Revenues 

The proposed amendment clarifies paragraph PS 3100.06 as the nature of the stipulations 
within sinking fund agreements can give rise to either internal or external restrictions. 

PS 3230 - Long-Term Debt 

The proposed amendment to paragraph PS 3230.22 clarifies that the disclosure requirement 
applies to all debt securities, including when a debt security is derecognized as required by 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, Section PS 3450. 

PS 3310 - Loan Guarantees 

The proposed amendment to paragraph PS 3310.08 clarifies that losses on loan guarantees are 
presented in the statement of operations. 

PS 3390 - Contractual Obligations 

The proposed new paragraph clarifies the interaction of Section 3390 and FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS, Section PS 3450. 

Amendments Resulting from Section 3450 

PSAB approved an exposure draft that proposes conforming amendments to the PSA Handbook 
necessitated by the approval of new Section PS 3450, Financial Instruments, in March 2011, 
including the withdrawal of Section PS 3030, Temporary Investments. 

The main features of this Exposure Draft are as follows: 

The distinction between temporary and portfolio investments is removed. Temporary 
investments that are not cash equivalents, as described in FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION, paragraph PS 1201.105, will be accounted for as portfolio investments. 

Requirements that apply to the reporting of portfolio investments are cross-referenced and 
conformed as a result of the adoption of FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, Section PS 3450. Changes 
involve: 

• including interests in pooled investment funds within scope; 

• replacing the definition for “cost method” with a definition for “amortized cost”; 

• conforming the definition of the effective interest method; 

19



Sunshine Coast Regional District 
May 1, 2012 

Page 19 
 

 

• deleting the definition of dividends; 

• adding accounting requirements included within the former definition of the cost 
method to paragraph PS 3040.05; 

• deleting the requirement to apply the cost method; instead, the recognition and 
measurement requirements within Section PS 3450 apply, other than to initial 
recognition of an investment with significant concessionary terms; 

• clarifying provisions that apply to the reporting of portfolio investments held by 
sinking funds; 

• replacing references to “carrying amount” and “carrying value” with “cost 
or amortized cost” within requirements that apply when accounting for a loss 
in value of a portfolio investment; and 

• specifying that the effective interest method is used when amortizing 
an investment discount to revenue. 

Update of Terminology 

PSAB approved an exposure draft of proposed updates to the terminology used in the Public 
Sector Accounting (PSA) Handbook.  The updates form part of a review of the PSA Handbook 
to explicitly indicate the applicability of individual standards to both governments and those 
government organizations that follow the PSA Handbook.   

The PSA Handbook was originally developed to address the financial reporting needs of 
governments in Canada. The terminology used in many of the standards still indicates that 
they are applicable to governments preparing their summary financial statements. 

Some government organizations now follow the PSA Handbook. A number of additional 
government organizations will be adopting the PSA Handbook for the first time in 2011 and 
2012 due to recent amendments to the Introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards. 

PSAB staff conducted a review of the PSA Handbook and, in most cases, concluded that only a 
simple update of terminology (for example, from “government” to “public sector entity”) was 
needed, in addition to defining the term “public sector entity” in the Introduction to mean 
both governments and government organizations.  However, for some standards, more in-
depth consideration of how the text should be updated to explicitly include government 
organizations is needed and these updates will be exposed for public comment in the future.   

Main features of Exposure Draft: 

PSAB issues standards and guidance that serve the public interest by improving information for 
decision making and by strengthening accountability in the public sector. Included in the 
scope of PSAB’s mandate are governments and government organizations. Government 
organizations are defined as organizations controlled by government. 

In this Exposure Draft, PSAB proposes to define a “public sector entity” to include federal, 
provincial, territorial and local governments and government organizations. PSAB proposes to 
replace the current applicability terminology (such as “governments”, “public sector 
reporting entity”, “entity” or “reporting entity”) with the term “public sector entity” in 
certain standards and guidelines. 
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As well, the following is proposed: 

• The term “government partnership” would be removed from paragraph .03 of the 
Introduction. By definition, a government partnership is not controlled by government 
and the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to be used by a 
government partnership is not dictated by the PSA Handbook, but instead is 
determined by the partners. GOVERNMENT PARTNERSHIPS, Section PS 3060, addresses 
how to account for a government partnership in the financial statements of a 
government reporting entity, not how a government partnership is to account for 
transactions in their financial statements. 

• “School Councils” would be removed from paragraph .03 of the Introduction. Similar 
to a government organization, a school Council is an organization controlled by 
government. Currently, footnote 1 to the Introduction is unclear for school Councils as 
it indicates the standards may be applied if considered appropriate. By removing the 
“school Council” references in paragraph .03 and footnote 1 of the Introduction, all 
organizations controlled by governments, including school Councils, will be provided 
the same direction regarding their basis of GAAP. 

 
Statements of Recommend Practice  
 
No new Statements of Recommended Practice were issued during the year. 

Projects, Invitations to Comment and Issues Papers 

Related Party Transactions - Disclosure - Invitation to Comment 

The main features of this Invitation to Comment are as follows: 

• Related parties include entities that control or are controlled by another entity, 
entities that are under common control and entities that have shared control over or 
that are subject to shared control. 

• A related party includes individuals that are members of key management personnel 
and close members of their family.  Details of compensation arrangements, expense 
allowances and other similar payments are excluded from disclosure requirements. 

• The reporting entity would disclose the nature of the relationship with related parties 
and the types of related party transactions that have occurred including those for 
which no amount has been recognized and the amounts involved related to the 
transaction. 

• Related party transactions that occur in the normal course of operations and at arm’s 
length are excluded from the disclosure requirements. 

• An entity would provide information about significant unrecognized related party 
transactions in sufficient detail to enable users of the entity’s financial statements to 
understand the impact they have had on its financial position and performance 
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Related Party Transactions - Recognition and Measurement - Issues Paper 

The main features of this Issues Paper are as follows: 

 Issues of recognition and measurement generally arise when related party transactions 
occur between entities that are part of the same reporting entity. 

 Related party transactions would be recognized when they involve the transfer of an 
asset or liability between related parties in order that financial statements provide an 
accounting of the assets that a public sector entity controls or obligations that will 
result in future sacrifice of economic resources. 

 Two approaches have been considered for a standard on related party transactions: 

– exclude measurement standards, which would mean transactions would be 
reported at whatever value is determined by government policy or the related 
parties unless there is a specific existing standard that stipulates how such 
transactions should be measured; or 

– include measurement standards, taking a similar approach to RELATED 
PARTYTRANSACTIONS, Section 3840 of the CICA Handbook – Accounting 

Conceptual Framework Task Force 

The objective of this project is to review and amend, if necessary, the conceptual framework 
in Sections PS 1000, Financial Statement Concepts, and PS 1100, Financial Statement 
Objectives. This review could also affect Section PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation. 

The issues to be considered include: 

 how to measure financial performance; 

 what financial statements can do and cannot do in measuring financial performance; 

 what aspects of the key concepts underlying financial performance in the framework 
require review and why; 

 alternative approaches to the key concepts being reviewed; and 

 how the alternative approaches affect the measure of financial performance. 

This project applies to all levels of government as well as government organizations that 
apply the CICA Public Sector Accounting (PSA) Handbook. 

Appropriations 

This project is focusing on the accounting issues related to inter-organization transactions and 
non-monetary transactions among related parties, and the nature of the appropriations.  
Exposure draft expected early 2012. 

Amalgamations and Restructuring 

In addition to amalgamations between entities, this project scope includes: 

 annexation 

 demerger 

 realignments of responsibility between governments 

 internal restructuring 
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Consideration is being given to the measurement basis to be used and when it might be 
appropriate to use cost, book values or fair values.  Exposure draft expected first quarter 
2012. 

Assets 

This project will be considering contractual rights and intangible assets.  Will also consider 
how to define “service potential”.  Exposure draft expected first quarter 2012. 

Concepts Underlying Financial Performance 

This project is to review the concepts underlying financial performance in its conceptual 
framework.  Exposure draft expected first quarter 2012. 

Revenue 

Expected to focus on revenue from exchange transactions.  Project expected to begin soon. 

Identifying and Reporting Performance Indicators 

Project on hold. 
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Auditing and Assurance Standards      

After last year’s major event of adoption of International Audit Standards via the issuance of 
new sections known as “Canadian Auditing Standards” or “CAS” this was expected to be a 
quiet year.  This turned out to be the case with only a few changes of significance in this 
area:  

Auditor Review of Interim Financial Statements, Section 7050 

These standards have been amended to clarify that when the auditor is required to include a 
reservation in his or her interim review report because of a departure from Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles and the matter giving rise to the reservation is as a 
result of an exemption permitted by securities regulations, the auditor is not required to 
request that the written interim review report be included in documents containing interim 
financial statements. 

CSAE 3416 Reporting on Controls at a Service Organization 

This new Canadian Standard on Assurance Engagements (CSAE) replaces AUDITOR'S REPORT ON 
CONTROLS AT A SERVICE ORGANIZATION, Section 5970. 

CSAE 3416 addresses audit engagements undertaken by a service auditor to report on controls 
at organizations that provide services to user entities when those controls are likely to be 
relevant to user entities' internal control over financial reporting. It complements CAS 402, 
"Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organization," in that reports 
prepared in accordance with this CSAE may provide appropriate evidence under CAS 402. 

CSAE 3416 is based on the Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements 16, Reporting 
on Controls at a Service Organization, which was issued in March 2010 by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants' Auditing Standards Council, modified in limited 
circumstances, where considered necessary to meet unique Canadian circumstances. 

CSAE 3416 covers the same subject matter as Section 5970, but there are some significant 
differences between the two. CSAE 3416: 

– contains requirements and application material to address those matters necessary for 
a service auditor to conduct the engagement (i.e., CSAE 3416 is a self-standing 
standard); 

– requires the service auditor to obtain a written assertion by management that is 
included in or attached to the description of the service organization's system; 

– requires procedures to be performed dealing with matters related to assessing the 
suitability of criteria; 

– deals with the concept of "intentional acts" requiring follow-up action when 
information about such acts is identified; 

– requires wording in the service auditor's report to restrict distribution as well as use of 
the service auditor's report. 

CSAE 3416 is effective for service auditors' reports for periods ending on or after December 
15, 2011, with earlier implementation permitted.  

 

24



 

Tel:   604 688 5421 
Fax:  604 688 5132 
vancouver@bdo.ca 
www.bdo.ca 

BDO Canada LLP 
600 Cathedral Place 
925 West Georgia Street 
Vancouver BC   V6C 3L2   Canada 

 

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and 
forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. 

            
 Independent Auditor’s Report  

 
 
 
To the Chairperson and Directors of the 
Sunshine Coast Regional District 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional District, which 
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2011, and the Statements of 
Operations, Change in Net Debt and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion.  
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Sunshine Coast Regional District as at December 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.  
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Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a 
whole.  The supplementary information included in Schedules 1 through 14 is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is prepared without audit. 
 
 
 
Chartered Accountants 
 
Vancouver, British Columbia 
May 10, 2012 

DR
AF
T

26



 

Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Statement Of Financial Position 
December 31, 2011 and 2010  

The accompanying section "Notes to Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements. 
1 

 2011 2010 
Restated 
(Note 3) 

Financial Assets   

Cash and equivalents  $ 1,413,948  $ 1,684,253 

Portfolio investments (Note 5)  9,734,450   9,512,681 

Accounts receivable (Note 6)  2,355,723   2,771,177 

Loans receivable (Note 7)  -   1,080 

Debt recoverable from member municipalities   10,365,405   8,672,275 

  23,869,526   22,641,466 

Liabilities   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 8)  2,889,608   3,283,313 

Employee future benefits (Note 20)  241,900   221,900 

Deferred revenue:   

Development cost charges (Note 9)  626,511   467,972 

Future parks acquisition (Note 10)  175,852   174,050 

Other (Note 11)  2,411,111   2,485,283 

Provision for landfill closure and post closure (Note 12)  5,368,856   5,174,304 

Long-term debt (Note 14)  34,106,371   34,082,900 

  45,820,209   45,889,722 

Net Debt  (21,950,683)   (23,248,256) 

Non-financial Assets   

Inventory and  prepaids   651,509   553,181 

Land held for Resale (Note 17)  2,450,425   2,426,254 

Tangible capital assets (Note 15)  150,768,267   145,213,989 

Accumulated Amortization (Note 15)  (32,561,544)   (29,192,353) 

  121,308,657   119,001,071 

Accumulated Surplus (Note 18) $ 99,357,974  $ 95,752,815 

 

Tina Perreault Garry Nohr 

Treasurer Chair 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Statement Of Change In Net Debt 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

The accompanying section "Notes to Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements. 
2 

          Fiscal Plan 
         2011 

          (Note 24) 

2011 2010 
Restated 
(Note 3) 

Annual operating surplus $ 7,498,394 $ 3,605,159  $ 5,760,213 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (14,347,737)  (5,728,907)   (7,148,494) 

Amortization  3,286,854  3,506,354   3,285,105 

Loss from sale of asset  -  11,506   74,470 

Proceeds from sale of assets  -  25,960   80,462 

Change in inventory and prepaids  -  (98,328)   52,479 

Change in land held for resale  -  (24,171)   (32,230) 

Change in net debt  (3,562,489)  1,297,573   2,072,005 
Net debt, beginning (23,248,712) (23,248,256)  (25,320,261) 

Net debt, ending $(26,882,446) $(21,950,683) $(23,248,256)
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Statement Of Operations 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

The accompanying section "Notes to Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements. 
3 

 Fiscal Plan 
2011 

(Note 24) 

Actual 
2011 

 

Actual 
2010 

Restated 
(Note 3) 

Revenue    

Grants in lieu of taxes $ 54,787 $ 59,577  $ 62,456 

Tax requisitions  13,639,159  13,639,156   13,141,462 

Frontage and parcel taxes  4,580,660  4,586,919   4,434,993 

Conditional grants and transfers  7,422,660  1,739,551   2,822,561 

Unconditional grants and transfers  192,000  192,000   53,353 

User fees and service charges  8,745,465  8,557,955   8,400,402 

Member municipality debt  1,019,520  1,030,509   1,111,528 

Investment income  50,000  184,168   158,579 

Developer contributions  106,573  8,151   1,157,332 

Other revenue  2,397,259  2,832,925   2,998,801 

  38,208,083  32,830,911   34,341,467 

    

Expenses    

General government  2,480,688  2,020,629   1,892,808 

Protective services  2,278,092  2,069,579   2,059,373 

Transportation services  2,921,578  2,891,933   2,790,312 

Environmental services  3,311,076  3,284,892   3,317,338 

Public health services  265,044  257,459   200,977 

Planning and development services  2,084,591  1,845,181   1,820,244 

Recreation and cultural services  9,921,445  9,931,574   9,411,271 

Water utilities  6,191,822  5,696,218   5,779,389 

Sewer utilities  235,833  212,720   193,102 

Debt charges member municipalities  1,019,520  1,030,509   1,111,528 

Other  -  (14,942)   4,912 

  30,709,689  29,225,752   28,581,254 

Annual Operating Surplus  7,498,394  3,605,159   5,760,213 

Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year  95,752,815  95,752,815   89,992,602 

Accumulated Surplus, end of year $ 103,251,209 $ 99,357,974  $ 95,752,815 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Statement Of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

The accompanying section "Notes to Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements. 
4 

 2011 2010 
Restated 
(Note 3) 

Operating Transactions:   

Annual operating surplus  $ 3,605,159 $ 5,760,213 

Items not involving cash included in annual surplus:   

Amortization of tangible capital assets   3,506,354  3,285,105 

Loss on disposal of capital assets   11,505  74,470 

Proceeds from sale of assets   (22,726)  - 

DCC revenue recognized   (8,151)  (901,984) 

Parks acquisition revenue recognized   -  (255,348) 

Developer contributed assets   (1,344,048)  (750,821) 

Employee future benefits   20,000  22,800 

 
 2,162,934  1,474,222 

Change in financial assets and liabilities involving cash:   

Provision for landfill closure and post-closure costs   194,552  30,365 

Increase (decrease) in accounts receivable   415,454  (240,299) 

Decrease in loans receivable   1,080  4,163 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable   (393,705)  239,687 

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue   (74,171)  29,251 

Change in inventory and prepaids   (98,328)  52,276 

Total Operating Transactions  5,812,975  7,349,878 

Investing Transactions:   

Decrease (increase) in investments   (221,767)  1,973,736 

Financing Transactions:   

Debt proceeds   210,741  190,634 

Repayment of long-term debt   (1,836,733)  (1,820,630) 

Collection of DCC (deferred revenue)   166,690  149,560 

Collection of parkland acquisition (deferred revenue)   1,802  159,292 

Total Financing Transactions  (1,457,500)  (1,321,144) 

Capital Transactions:   

Acquisition of tangible capital assets   (4,384,859)  (6,397,673) 

Change in land held for resale   (24,171)  (32,230) 

Proceeds from sale of assets   5,017  80,462 

Total Capital Transactions  (4,404,013)  (6,349,441) 

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year  1,684,253  31,224 

Cash and equivalents, end of year $ 1,413,948 $ 1,684,253 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 
 

5 

1. Significant Accounting Policies 

The preparation of the Financial Statements is   the responsibility of the management of the Sunshine Coast 
Regional District.  The  accounting  policies  used  within  these  statements conform  to  Canadian  
public  sector  accounting  standards.  They have been prepared in accordance with current 
recommendations issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered 
Accountants. 

(a) Reporting entity and consolidation: 

The Financial Statements combine the activities of the various funds of the reporting entity - Sunshine 
Coast Regional District. Interfund transactions and fund balances have been eliminated for reporting 
purposes. There are no other organizations under the control of the Regional District Board that meet 
the criteria for inclusion and consolidation in these statements. 

(b) Budget: 

The budget is part of the statutory five-year financial plan adopted by the Regional District Board and 
reflects the anticipated revenues and expenditures for a given year. The budget is prepared on a basis 
consistent with that used to report the actual results achieved.  See note 24. 

(c) Revenue recognition: 

Sources  of  revenue  are  recorded  on  an  accrual  basis  and  recognized in the period in 
which  they  are  earned.  Unearned revenue in the current period is reported on the Statement of 
Financial Position as deferred revenue. 

(d) Government transfers: 

Government transfers are recognized as revenue or expenses in the period that the grant is approved 
and any stipulations that create a liability have been met. 

(e) Expense recognition: 

Operating expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the period in which they are incurred. 

(f) Use of estimates: 

Estimates  are  required  to  determine  the  accrued  liabilities  for  employee  future  benefit, 
landfill closure costs, and useful  lives of tangible capital assets.  Actual results could differ from these 
estimates.  Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in the operations in the period of settlement. 

(g) Cash and equivalents: 

Cash consists of cash on hand, cash in transit, and cash on deposit. Cash equivalents are short-term 
investments made to obtain a return on a temporary basis and are carried at fair value. 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

 

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

6 

(h) Portfolio investments: 

Investments include both Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia (MFA) pooled investments, by 
which market-based unit values are allocated amongst the participants in the  investment  pool,  and  
other  long-term  investments  in  securities,  including  bonds  or money market investments,  
which are carried at cost but written down when there has been a permanent decline in value. 

(i) Loans receivable: 

Loans receivable are recorded at cost and reduced by the amount of any repayment in the year.  
Interest  calculated  at  the  MFA  short-term  borrowing  rate  is  accrued  on  the outstanding 
balance. 

(j) Deferred revenues: 

Deferred revenues are those which are received in advance of the expenses to which they are 
associated.  They  will  be  recognized  as revenue  in  future  years  when  they  can  be 
matched against expenses for the related service or capital projects.  

(k) Inventory: 

Inventories of supplies are valued at cost and classified as non- financial assets. 

(l) Non-financial Assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision 
of services.  They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in 
the ordinary course of business 

(m) Hillside Development Project land costs: 

The cost of Hillside Development Project Land Held for Resale (Note 17) is comprised of acquisition 
costs and development costs, including interest on borrowing and other direct costs.  The cost of land 
sold, excluding development costs, is prorated to each parcel of land on an acreage basis.  
Development costs are allocated as incurred evenly across remaining saleable parcels of land as they 
are incurred.  Undeveloped land and water space leases owned by the Regional District are recorded at 
historical cost. 

(n) Service severance pay: 

Service severance pay to full-time employees hired prior to 1994 with over 20 years of continuous 
service with any B.C. municipality or  regional  district  is  payable  upon  their leaving the 
employment of the Regional District.  The liability for such payments has been accrued and included in 
employee future benefits liability as set out in (Note 20). 
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(o) Trusts under administration: 

Public sector accounting standards require that trusts administered by a government should be excluded 
from the government reporting entity. The Regional District does not have any accounts that meet the 
definition of a trust.  

(p) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible  capital  assets  are  recorded  at  cost  less  accumulated  amortization  and  are 
classified to their functional use.  Cost includes all costs directly attributable to acquisition or  
construction  of  the  tangible  capital  asset  including  transportation  costs,  installation costs, 
design and engineering fees, legal fees and site preparation costs.  Contributed tangible capital assets 
are recorded at fair market value at the time of the donation, with the corresponding amount recorded as 
revenue. Amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of the tangible capital 
asset commencing once the asset is put into service. 

Estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets are as follows: 
Land Improvements  15 to 50 years 

Buildings  20 to 50 years 

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment  5 to 40 years 

Technology Equipment  4 to 5 years 

Machinery & Equipment  5 to 20 years 

Vehicles  6 to 15 years 

Sewer Treatment Infrastructure  50 years 

Water Supply Infrastructure  25 to 100 years 

Water Distribution Infrastructure  20 to 100 years 

Leasehold Improvements  10 to 40 years 

Work in Progress:  not amortized until the assets are put into use 

Leased assets 

Leases entered into that transfer substantially all the benefits and risks associated with ownership are 
recorded as the acquisition of a tangible capital asset and the incurrence of an obligation.  The asset is 
amortized in a manner consistent with tangible capital assets owned  by  the  Sunshine Coast 
Regional District,  and  the  obligation,  including  interest thereon,  is  repaid  over  the  term  of  
the  lease.    All other leases are accounted for as operating leases, and the rental costs are expensed 
as incurred. 

2. Change in Prior Year Presentation: 

During the year a restatement of prior year comparatives was required to conform to current year presentation 
standards.  
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3. Restatement of provision for landfill closure and post-closure costs: 

In 2011 fiscal period, a revision of the cumulative capacity of Sechelt Landfill was done.  This concluded that 
the previous capacity used and provision for Sechelt Landfill closure was understated by $1,331,263 in 2009 
and $69,896 in 2010. 
 
This change, which results in an increase in the carrying value of liability, has been applied retroactively with 
the restatement of the prior period.  The impact of restating the change in value was a resulting decrease to 
the 2010 opening and closing “accumulated surplus” balance which represents the total amount of current 
surpluses, capital  surpluses, reserve funds and investment in non- financial assets has changed as follows: 

  

Statement of Financial Position 

2010 

(restated) 

2010 

(as reported)

Financial Assets  $ 22,641,466  $ 22,641,466 

Provision for landfill closure and post closure  (5,174,304)   (3,773,145) 

Remaining liabilities  (40,715,418)   (40,715,418) 

Net Debt  (23,248,256)   (21,847,097) 

Non-financial assets  119,001,071   119,000,815 

Accumulated Surplus $ 95,752,815  $ 97,153,718 

 

Statement of Operations 

2010 

(restated) 

2010 

(as reported)

Environmental services  $ 3,317,338  $ 3,247,440

Annual Operating Surplus $ 5,760,213  $ 5,830,108

 

4. Related Party Transactions: 

The Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District is related to the Sunshine Coast Regional District since the 
same individuals are members of the Board of Directors of both organizations. As legislated by the Hospital 
District Act, the officers and employees of the Sunshine Coast Regional District are the corresponding officers 
and employees of the Hospital District. Each of the Regional District and the Hospital District are separate legal 
entities as defined by separate Letters Patent and authorized by separate legislation. During the year the 
Hospital District purchased, $108,457 (2010 - $94,164) of administrative support services from the Capital 
Regional District. These transactions are recorded at the exchange amount, which is the amount of 
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 
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5. Portfolio Investments: 

 

 2011 2010 

Municipal Finance Authority- money market funds 1 $ 4,041,212  $ 3,999,853 

Municipal Finance Authority- bond funds 1  2,675,408   1,990,164 

Raymond James- GIC's 2  2,012,729   3,522,664 

BMO- Nesbitt Burns- GIC's 3  1,005,101   - 

 $ 9,734,450  $ 9,512,681 
1 Municipal Finance Authority investments are pooled invested funds by which municipalities in B.C. can access high-quality  investments,  
while  maintaining  a  high  degree  of  security  and  liquidity.  Interest rates  are  variable.  These investments are for restricted 
funds, including reserves and development cost charges. 
2  Investments with Raymond James are in a medium-term note at an interest rate of 1.3% to maturity in 2012, which is recorded at cost.  
3  Investments with BMO- Nesbitt Burns are in a medium-term note at an interest rate of 1.6% to maturity in 2012, which is recorded at 
cost.  

The Regional District does not hold any asset-backed commercial paper or hedge funds, either directly or 
through its pooled-fund holdings. 

6. Accounts Receivable: 

 

 2011 2010 

Trade accounts receivable $ 1,720,055  $ 2,087,506 

Taxes receivable  614,937   657,991 

Accounts receivable from employees  17,254   22,220 

Other accounts receivable  3,477   3,460 

 $ 2,355,723  $ 2,771,177 

7. Loans Receivable: 

The loans receivable amount of NIL (2010 - $1,080) is from specific property owners that relate to the repair 
and upgrading of Woodcreek sewage treatment facilities. Collection of the amounts from the property owners 
takes place until all amounts are repaid.  The outstanding balance accrues interest at the MFA short-term 
borrowing rate. 
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8. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities: 

 

 2011 2010 

Trade accounts payable  $ 1,528,239  $ 2,144,038 

Holdbacks payable  51,999   129,213 

Other   92,038   83,176 

Accrued trade   624,651   416,288 

Accrued wages and benefits   592,681   510,598 

 $ 2,889,608  $ 3,283,313 

9. Development Cost Charges: 

Development cost charges represent funds received from developers for the sole purpose of funding  the  
capital  cost  of  providing,  altering  or  expanding  water  facilities  in  order  to  serve directly  or  
indirectly,  to  the  development  with  respect  the  charges  are  imposed.  The development cost 
charges are restricted for the purpose of capital improvements to the water system and will be recognized as 
revenue in future periods when qualifying capital projects are undertaken.  Development cost charges 
collected in 2011 amount to $166,690 (2010 - $149,560).    The  amount  of  development  cost  charges  
recognized  as  revenue  in  2011  was $8,151 ( 2010 - $901,984).  The Regional District had no waivers 
or reductions as a result of eligible developments in 2011. 

10. Future Parks Acquisition: 

Under section 941 of the Local Government Act, developers are required to provide parkland or pay an amount 
equivalent to the market value of the parkland when subdividing. The payments received  are  recorded  as  
deferred  revenue  and  the  use  of  these  funds  is  restricted  to  the acquisition  of  park  lands.  
The  revenue  will  be  recognized  in  future  periods  when  additional parkland  is  acquired.  In 
2011, $1,802 was received from developers (2010 - $159,292). Revenue recognized in 2011 was $NIL   
(2010 - $255,348 for the purchase of additional land for Coopers Green Park). 

11. Deferred Revenue-Other: 

In  2011,  the  Regional  District  received  amounts  collected  in  advance  for  services  or  grant 
funding for capital projects that are either in  progress or will commence at a later date.  The material 
amounts reflected in the $2,411,111 (2010 - $2,485,283) is as follows: $1,308,301 (2010 - $1,270,896) from 
Community Works Gas Tax grant funding; $528,772 (2010 - $657,699) for water fund capital projects; 
$233,228 (2010 - $237,815) for recreation department deferred revenue; $94,416 (2010 - $88,151) for the 
cemetery care fund; $69,472 ($NIL - 2010) for the Strategic Community Investment Funds (Note 26). The 
remaining amounts are for various "other" minor government grant funding received, as well as amounts 
collected in advance to the Regional District.   These amounts will be recognized as revenue in future years 
when they can be matched against expenses for the related services or capital projects. 
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12. Provision for Landfill Future Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs: 

The Regional District  operates  two  landfill  sites  -  one  in  Sechelt  and  the  other  in  Pender 
Harbour.  As set out in government legislation, the Regional District is responsible for closure and post-closure 
care costs related to these sites.  The Regional District's estimated liability for these costs is recognized as the 
landfill site’s   capacity is used.    The  recorded  liability  of $5,368,856    (2010  -  $5,174,304)  
represents  the  portion  of  the  estimated  total  future  costs recognized  as  at  December 31, 2011.  
The Regional District has set aside funds for future landfill closure and post-closure care costs.  The balance 
of these funds as at December 31, 2011 is $2,675,408 (2010 - $1,990,164) and is included in Portfolio 
Investments (Note 5). 

The reported liability is based on estimates and assumptions with respect to events extending over the 
remaining life of the landfill. The liability and annual expense is calculated based on the ratio of usage to total 
capacity and the discounted estimated future cash flows associated with closure and post-closure activities. 
The Sechelt landfill site is expected to reach its capacity in 2028 and the Pender Harbour landfill site is 
expected to reach its capacity in 2013. The remaining capacity of the Sechelt landfill site is estimated at 
269,831 cubic meters, which is 30.70% of the total capacity. The Pender Harbour landfill site has only 3.70% 
remaining capacity.  Plans are currently underway to convert the site to a transfer station.  Post closure care 
costs are expected to continue for 25 years following the year of closure.  

13. Internal Liability Under Agreement: 

In 2011, the Community Recreation Services Department engaged in capital projects as a result of asset 
failure and capital project cost overruns. Funding for these expenditures was not secured prior to 
commencement. In 2012, the Sunshine Coast Regional District Board approved an internal liability under 
agreement to borrow from the Regional Water Capital and Operating reserves to the Community Recreation 
Facilities Services (General Fund).  These funds will be repaid from the recreation department to the water 
reserve over a 5 year period.  This results in a decrease to the Reserve fund and increase to capital fund.  
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14. Long-Term Debt: 

 

Authority Purpose Maturing
Interest 

Rate 2011 2010 

MFA Debenture Debt    

572 Field Road Admin Building 2026  4.66% $ 2,415,062  $ 2,531,034 

561 Com. Recreation Facilities 2025  4.17%  13,562,933   14,155,601 

561 Com. Recreation Facilities 2026  4.66%  1,550,739   1,744,973 

571 Fleet Maint. Bldg. Expansion 2026  4.66%  332,971   348,960 

570 Recycling Vehicle & Equip. 2016  4.66%  121,575   143,157 

562 Dakota Ridge 2016  4.66%  123,496   145,419 

575 Egmont VFD 2026  4.66%  81,811   85,740 

592 911 2017  4.82%  429,795   492,100 

593 Parks Master Plan 2022  4.82%  962,374   1,030,989 

613 Pender Harbour Pool 2029  4.90%  805,872   836,087 

553 Water Treatment Plant 2025  4.17%  2,484,101   2,614,681 

Various 
Debt issued for member 
municipalities 

2014 to 
2031 

3.00% 
to 

5.55%  10,365,405   8,672,276 

     33,236,134    32,801,017 

Capital Leases    

MFA Leasing Corp. 
Various vehicle & capital 
leases 

2012 to 
2016 -  870,237   1,281,883 

   $ 34,106,371  $ 34,082,900 

 Future principal repayments on existing long-term debt: 
2012  $ 1,914,222  

2013  1,844,979  

2014   1,702,016  

2015   1,665,145  

2016   1,629,277  

Thereafter  25,350,732  

 $ 34,106,371  
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 Approved Debt: 

The Sunshine Coast Regional District has the following authorized, but un-issued debt as at December 31, 
2011.  Both bylaws expire July 2014, five years from the date of adoption.  

Bylaw #619 - Area A Water Master Plan Initiatives  $610,700 

2011 budgeted portion to be used is $NIL for South Pender Water Treatment Plant design. 

Bylaw #617 - Area A Water Master Plan Initiatives  $407,100 

2011 budgeted portion to be used is $NIL for North Pender, Oyster Bay water main project and UV treatment. 
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15. Tangible Capital Assets: 

 

  Land 
Land 

Improvements Buildings 

Furniture, 
Fixtures and 
Equipment 

 Technology 
Equipment 

 Machinery & 
Equipment  Vehicles 

Cost, beginning of Year $ 21,507,631  $ 863,678 $ 29,756,176 $ 1,757,123 $ 1,340,892  $ 4,727,756 $ 5,024,054 

Additions  -   18,307  11,850  39,929  106,044   199,303  363,207 

Disposals  -   -  -  -  (7,138)   (133,392)  (129,138) 

Cost, end of year  21,507,631   881,985  29,768,026  1,797,052  1,439,798   4,793,667  5,258,123 

Accumulated amortization, 
beginning of year  -   523,293  3,674,100  851,390  900,890   1,227,297  3,214,094 

Amortization  -   36,485  703,575  192,706  222,515   314,954  360,989 

Disposals  -   -  -  -  (7,138)   (27,220)  (102,805) 

Accumulated amortization, 
end of year  -   559,778  4,377,675  1,044,096  1,116,267   1,515,031  3,472,278 

Net carrying amount, end 
of year $ 21,507,631  $ 322,207 $ 25,390,351 $ 752,956 $ 323,531  $ 3,278,636 $ 1,785,845 
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Sewer 
Treatment 

Infrastructure 
Water Supply 
Infrastructure 

Water 
Distribution 

Infrastructure 
 Leasehold 

Improvements 
Work in 

Progress 2011 2010 

$ 1,108,220  $ 16,459,234  $ 53,469,694  $ 6,499,938 $ 2,699,594 $ 145,213,990 $ 138,425,326  

 -   1,944,843   2,751,377   425,590  1,135,989  6,996,439  9,078,023  

 -   -   -   -  (1,172,494)  (1,442,162)  (2,289,359)  

 1,108,220   18,404,077   56,221,071   6,925,528  2,663,089  150,768,267  145,213,990  

 374,577   4,732,340   12,840,910   853,462  -  29,192,353  26,112,146  

 22,164   552,220   767,297   333,449  -  3,506,354  3,288,286  

 -   -   -   -  -  (137,163)  (208,079)  

 396,741   5,284,560   13,608,207   1,186,911  -  32,561,544  29,192,353  

$ 711,479  $ 13,119,517  $ 42,612,864  $ 5,738,617 $ 2,663,089 $ 118,206,723 $ 116,021,637  
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16. Debt Reserve Fund: 

The Regional District is required to pay into a debt reserve fund administered by the Municipal Finance 
Authority of British Columbia (MFA) an amount equal to one-half the average annual installment of principal 
and interest relative to any borrowing for its own purposes and on behalf of member municipalities. These 
amounts do not appear elsewhere in the financial statements. At December 31, 2011  the  debt  reserve  
fund  administered  by  the  MFA  on  behalf  of  the Regional District and member municipalities is 
comprised of: 

 

 

Cash 
Deposits 

Demand 
Notes 

General Operating Fund $ 323,315  $ 835,324 

Water Utility Operating Fund  40,422   88,340 

Member Municipality Debt  235,336   513,547 

 $ 599,073  $ 1,437,211 

 

2011  
Total 

2010  
Total 

General Operating Fund $ 1,158,639  $ 1,147,982 

Water Utility Operating Fund  128,762   127,430 

Member Municipality Debt  748,883   661,676 

 $ 2,036,284  $ 1,937,088 

17. Land Held for Resale: 

Included in the Capital Fund portion of Accumulated Surplus (Note 18) is a deficit of $1,167,274 for 2011 
(2010 - $1,143,104) which represents the shortfall of funding for the development of the Hillside Industrial Park.  
The  net  proceeds  from  the  eventual  sale  of  lots  in  the  Hillside Development  Park  will  be  
used  to  eliminate the  capital  fund  deficit  and  all  remaining  net proceeds will be set aside in a 
reserve under Part 13 of the Local Government Act. In 2011 and 2010 there were no lots sold.  

The assets of the Hillside Development Project are as follows: 

 2011 2010 

Land held for Resale 1 $ 2,450,425  $ 2,426,254 

Protected lands-not for sale 2  1,109,877   1,109,877 

 $ 3,560,302  $ 3,536,131 
1 Includes purchase, financing and development costs (net of other revenues and recoveries). 
2 Includes  demonstration  forest,  interpretation  area,  parklands  and  protected  habitat  areas.  These  assets  are included as 
tangible capital assets (Note 15) . 
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18. Accumulated Surplus: 

 

 2011 2010 

Fund Balances:    

Current fund 1 $ (1,866,843)  $ (1,769,673) 

Capital Fund    (1,221,375)   (733,105) 

Reserve funds  5,017,463   4,665,403 

Financial Equity  1,929,245   2,162,625 

Investment in Non-Financial Assets  97,428,729   93,590,190 

Accumulated Surplus, end of year $ 99,357,974  $ 95,752,815 
1 Current fund includes future liabilities such as employee future benefits (Note 20) and unfunded post-closure landfill liabilities (Note 12) 
contributing to the negative position.  
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19. Investment in Non-financial Assets: 

The  investment  in  Non-financial  Assets  represents  the  Regional  District's  equity  in  the  
non-financial assets it holds. The value is calculated as the book value of all non-financial assets minus  the  
outstanding  long-term  debt  associated  with  purchasing  those  assets.  Member municipality debt is 
excluded from the calculation. 

 

 2011 2010 

Investment in Non-Financial Assets, beginning of year  $ 93,590,190  $ 88,271,988 

Add:    

Acquisition of tangible capital assets   5,728,907   7,148,494 

Change in inventory and prepaids   98,328   (52,479) 

Change in land held for resale  24,171   32,230 

Debt principal repayments  1,836,733   1,820,630 

Accumulated Amortization removed on sale of assets  137,163   208,081 

   7,825,302   9,156,956 

Deduct:   

Debt issued and other obligations to finance capital additions  210,741   190,634 

Costs of Assets sold or written off  269,668   363,015 

Amortization  3,506,354   3,285,105 

  3,986,763   3,838,754 

Investment in Non-financial Assets, end of year $ 97,428,729  $ 93,590,190 

20. Employee Future Benefits: 

 Sick Pay 

The Regional District provides paid sick leave to qualifying employees. This benefit of one day of  sick  leave  
per  month  accrues  to  a  maximum  of  18  days,  but  is  not  vested.  When the maximum 
accumulated sick leave was introduced, employees with more than 18 days in their sick leave bank were 
grandfathered.  These employees maintained their existing sick-leave bank balance at the time this change 
was introduced. However, their sick-leave bank will not accrue any additional sick leave days until the bank 
drops below the 18-day maximum.  The amount  recorded  for  this  benefit  is  based on  an  actuarial  
evaluation  prepared  by  an independent  firm  and  will  be  reviewed  on  a  periodic  basis.  The 
date of the last actuarial evaluation was as of December 31, 2010 and updated to December 31, 2011. 
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 Retirement Pay 

A  regular  employee  who  was  hired  before  1994  and  retires  under  the  provisions  of  the 
Municipal Pension Plan is entitled to two weeks pay for each full year of service over 20 years as a retirement 
benefit. In all instances, the rate of pay used in the calculation of the retirement benefit shall be the rate of pay 
applicable on the last day worked.  The amount recorded for this benefit in 2011 is based on an actuarial 
evaluation prepared by an independent firm and will be reviewed on a periodic basis. The date of the last 
actuarial evaluation was as of December 31, 2010 and updated to December 31, 2011. 

As of December 31, 2011, $114,581 (2010 - $79,639) of the accrued benefit liability is charged to operations 
and $127,769 (2010 - $142,261) is unfunded. The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the 
Regional District's accrued benefit liability are as follows: 

 2011 2010 

Discount rates  3.10%   4.00% 

Expected future inflation rates  2.50%   2.50% 

Expected wage and salary increases  2.50%   2.50% 

 Accrued Benefit Obligation as at December 31, 2011 

 2011 2010 

Beginning benefit obligation  $ 238,300  $ 228,300 

Current service cost   11,500   11,500 

Interest on accrued benefit obligation   9,800   11,200 

Actuarial gain (loss)  9,300   (10,200) 

Benefits paid during the year  (3,000)   (2,500) 

Ending benefit obligation  265,900   238,300 
Less: Unamortized net actuarial (loss)/gain  (24,000)   (16,400) 

Accrued Benefit Liability $ 241,900  $ 221,900 

21. Contingent Liabilities: 

(a) Pension Plan: 

The Regional District and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the Plan), a jointly 
trusteed pension plan.  The  Board of  Trustees,  representing  plan  members  and employers, is 
responsible for overseeing the management of the Plan, including investment  of  the  assets  and  
administration  of  benefits.  The pension plan is a multi-employer, contributory pension plan.  Basic 
pension benefits provided are defined.  The Plan has about 173,000 active members and approximately 
63,000 retired members.  Active members include approximately 35,000 contributors from local 
governments.
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Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the Plan and the 
adequacy of Plan funding.  The most recent valuation as at December 31, 2009 indicated a 
deterioration of the basic fund from a surplus in 2006 valuation, to an unfunded liability of $1,024 million 
for basic pension benefits. The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2012, with results available in 
2013. The actuary attributes one of the  main  reasons  for  the  actuarial  deterioration  is  due  to  
investment  returns  lower  than assumed and does not attribute portions of the liability to individual 
employers. 

The Sunshine Coast Regional District paid $776,014 in employer contributions to the plan in fiscal 2011 
(2010 - $694,400).  In addition, employees contributed $691,091 (2010 -$635,396). 

(b) Reciprocal insurance exchange agreement: 

The  Regional District is a subscribed member of the Municipal Insurance Association of British 
Columbia (the "Exchange") as provided by Section 3.02 of the Insurance Act of the Province  of  British  
Columbia.  The main purpose of the Exchange is to pool the risks of liability so as to lessen the impact 
upon any subscriber. Under the Reciprocal Insurance Exchange Agreement, the Regional District is 
assessed a premium and a specific deductible for its claims, based on population. The obligation of the 
Regional District with respect to the Exchange and/or contracts and obligations entered into by the 
Exchange on behalf of its subscribers in connection with the Exchange are in every case several, and 
not joint-and-several.  The Regional District irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes and agrees to 
indemnify and save harmless the other subscribers against liability losses and costs which the other 
subscriber may suffer. 

(c) Third party claims: 

Various  lawsuits  and  claims  are  pending  by  and  against  the  Regional District.    It  is  
the opinion  of  management  that  the  amount  of  settlement  from  these  claims  cannot  be 
reasonably estimated, nor can the likelihood of  their outcomes be known at this time. The final 
determination of these claims is not expected to materially affect the financial position of the Regional 
District.  Any ultimate settlements will be recorded in the year the settlement occurs. 

22. Contractual  Obligations:   

The Regional District has entered into various agreements and contracts for the provision of services that 
extend beyond the current year. These agreements and contracts range in value (from approximately $87,000 
to $700,000) and duration of up to 3 consecutive years.   
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23. Expense by Object: 

 

 

2011 

Budget 

2011 

Actual 

2010 

Actual 

Operating Expenses:     

Salaries, wages and benefits $ 13,918,702  $ 13,115,359 $ 12,610,611 

Operating goods and services  11,014,889   10,195,477  10,063,768 

Debt charges - interest  1,469,724   1,366,548  1,435,760 

Debt charges member municipalities  1,019,520   1,030,509  1,111,528 

Amortization  3,286,854   3,506,354  3,285,105 

Loss from sale of asset  -   11,505  74,470 

Total Operating Expenses $ 30,709,689  $ 29,225,752 $ 28,581,242 

Capital Expenses:    

Capital salaries, wages and benefits  129,165   233,644  169,034 

Capital Expenses  13,564,572   5,495,263  6,979,460 

Total Capital Expenses $ 13,693,737  $ 5,728,907 $ 7,148,494 
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24. Fiscal Plan: 

Fiscal plan amounts represent the Financial Plan By-Law #637 adopted by the Regional Board on March 24, 
2011 with estimates for amortization of tangible capital assets.  The  Financial  Plan  anticipated  use  of  
surpluses  accumulated  in  previous  years  to  balance against current year expenditures in excess of 
current revenues.  In addition, the Financial Plan anticipated capital expenditures rather than amortization 
expense. The following shows how these amounts were combined: 

 

2011 

Budget 

Budgeted surplus for the year:  $ -  

Addback:  

Capital Expenditures   14,347,737  

Less:   

Amortization   3,286,854  

Budgeted transfers from accumulated surplus  3,562,489  

Fiscal Plan Surplus $ 7,498,394 

25. Segmented Reporting: 

A segment is a distinguishable activity or group of activities for which financial information is separately 
reported on.  The Regional District applies segmented reporting for  each  major functional classification of 
services it provides. The detailed financial information regarding each segment  is  found  in  supplementary  
schedules  in   accordance  with  government  reporting  for segments. The major segments are as 
follows: 

 
General Government Services (Schedule 4);  
Protective Services (Schedule 5);  
Transportation Services (Schedule 6);  
Environmental Services (Schedule 7);  
Public Health Services (Schedule 8);  
Planning and Development Services (Schedule 9);  
Recreation and Cultural Services (Schedule 10);  
Water Utilities (Schedule 11); and 
Sewer Utilities (Schedule 12). 

48



 

Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

 

23 

26. Strategic Community Investment Funds: 

In 2009, the Regional District entered into an agreement with the Province of British Columbia to  receive  
funding  from  the  Strategic  Community   Investment  Funds  program  (SCI).    These funds  are  to  
be  used  to  support  the  Regional District in  stimulating  the  local  economy  or providing increased 
financial certainty in uncertain economic times.  The funds are designed to provide  a  flexible,  
objective-based  approach.    The Province extended this initiative for 2011, and plans for a new agreement 
is expected for 2012.  The Regional District  received $261,472 in 2011 ($53,353 in 2010) of which only 
$192,000 was recognized in 2011 revenue.  These funds will be used to support the administration of the 
Regional District and to support services in order to avoid tax increases. 

 

Intended Use Targets Performance Targets  Progress 

  
    

To support Regional District 
administration (other than 
electoral area administration).  

$ 261,472 100% of the funds received 
are to be used to support 
Regional District 
administration over the term 
of the SCI Agreement

-  73% of the SCI funds 
received were used to 
maintain Regional District 
administration levels at 
those of previous years;

  -  The remaining funds (27%) 
were set aside to be 
accessed in 2012 for the 
purposes stated above.
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Statement of Current Fund 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule  1 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 
2011 2010 

Restated 
(Note 3) 

General Fund 
  

General Government Services:   
Administration $ (98,387) $ (26,543) 
Finance  -  1 
General Office Building Maintenance  (2)  (55,782) 
Human Resources  1  4,829 
Information Services  1  3 
Feasibility Studies  (24,160)  (21,731) 
SCRHD Administration  -  4,093 
Grants in Aid  (96,253)  60,745 
UBCM  (29,234)  89 

Protective Services:   
Bylaw Enforcement  -  16 
Smoke Control  -  (1,082) 
Fire Protection:   

Gibsons and District Fire Protection  (1)  105 
Roberts Creek Fire Protection  -  (1,535) 
Halfmoon Bay Fire Protection  (1)  620 
Egmont Fire Department  (2)  340 

Emergency Telephone - 911  2  1 
Sunshine Coast Emergency Planning  -  3,726 
Animal Control  (15,394)  - 

Transportation Services:   
Public Transit  (19,799)  (93,319) 
Maintenance Facility  1  - 
Regional Street Lighting  4,775  (3,124) 
Local Street Lighting  82  (365) 
Ports Services  36,867  1 

Environmental Services:   
Regional Solid Waste  55,767  53,559 
Refuse Collection  -  3 

Public Health Services:   
Cemetery  -  1,122 
Pender Harbour Health Clinic  -  - 

Planning and Development Services:   
Regional Planning  -  1 
Rural Planning  -  - 
Geographic Information Services  (1)  333 
House numbering  -  - 
Heritage  (3,332)  3,301 
Building Inspection Services  25,603  - 
Economic Development  7,896  779 

Sub-total Carried Forward (next page)  (155,571)  (69,814) 
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General Fund (Continued)   

Sub-total Brought Forward (previous page)  (155,571)  (69,814) 
Recreation and Cultural Services:   

Pender Harbour Pool  1,161  (2,527) 
School facilities - Joint Use  (62)  849 
Gibsons and Area Library  (4,347)  - 
Museum Service  (1,000)  1,000 
Halfmoon Bay & Roberts Creek Library Service  (172)  7,604 
Community Recreation Facilities Service  (43,211)  5 
Community Parks  -  22,517 
Bicycle and Walking Paths  (2,154)  9,978 
Regional Recreation Programs  (6,212)  4,890 
Dakota Ridge Recreation Service  1,261  (11,836) 

Total General Fund  (210,307)  (37,334) 
Water Fund   

Regional Water Services  1  (45,300) 
Sewer Fund   

Local Sewer Plants  46  (4,910) 
Total Surplus (Deficit)  (210,260)  (87,544) 

Current Fund   
General Fund Surplus  (210,307)  (37,334) 
Inventory and  prepaids  (651,509)  (553,181) 
Other  83,386  47,587 
Hillside  53,000  53,000 
Appropriated Surplus  1,679,307  2,096,866 
Unfunded Post Employment Future Benefits  (127,319)  (142,261) 
Unfunded Landfill Closure  (2,693,448)  (3,184,140) 

General Current Fund  (1,866,890)  (1,719,463) 
Water Fund Surplus  1  (45,300) 
Sewer Fund Surplus  46  (4,910) 
Total Current Fund $ (1,866,843) $ (1,769,673) 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
General Revenue, Water Utility and Sewer Funds 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule  2 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 
General 

Revenue Fund Water utilities Sewer utilities

Revenue    
Grants in lieu of taxes $ 59,161  $ 416 $ - 
Tax requisitions  13,639,156   -  - 
Frontage and parcel taxes  1,650,407   2,874,992  61,520 
Conditional grants and transfers  1,468,184   271,366  - 
Unconditional grants and transfers  192,000   -  - 
User fees and service charges  5,516,722   2,866,761  174,472 
Member municipality debt  1,030,509   -  - 
Investment income  158,011   17,457  8,700 
Developer contributions  -   8,151  - 
Other revenue  766,783   2,066,142  - 

Total Revenue  24,480,933   8,105,285  244,692 
Expenses    

Administration  2,502,558   583,250  16,876 
Wages and benefits  11,155,033   1,897,789  77,481 
Operating  9,703,131   1,603,314  96,198 
Debt charges - interest  1,227,837   138,710  - 
Internal recoveries  (4,309,347)   (504)  - 
Debt charges member municipalities  1,030,509   -  - 
Amortization  2,022,501   1,461,687  22,164 
Loss from sale of asset  (468)   11,972  - 

Total Expenses  23,331,754   5,696,218  212,719 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  1,149,179   2,409,067  31,973 

Add: Proceeds from sale of assets  25,851   1,200  - 
Add: Proceeds from long term debt  210,742   -  - 
Less: Debt principle repayment  (1,627,937)   (208,796)  - 
Less: Acquisition of tangible capital assets  (1,825,192)   (3,903,714)  - 
Less: Change in Inventory and  prepaids  -   -  - 
Less: Change in Land held for resale  (24,171)   -  - 

Increase (Decrease) in Financial Equity  2,091,528   1,702,243  (31,973) 
Transfer to / (from) reserves  375,563   109,756  48,202 
Transfer to / from appropriated surplus  (449,950)   (353,381)  - 
Transfer to / from unfunded liability  162,916   -  - 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  (2,022,501)   (1,461,687)  (22,164) 
Transfer to/ (from) unfunded loss on asset  (132)   (12,172)  - 
Transfer to/(from) other funds  (346,686)   -  1,080 
Interfund transfers  (15,242)   15,242  - 
Other transfers  (24,171)   -  - 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  18,368   -  4,901 

Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ (210,307)  $ 1 $ 46 
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Other 
Actual 
2011 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

Restated 
(Note 3) 

    
$ -  $ 59,577  $ 54,787  $ 62,456 
 -   13,639,156   13,639,159   13,141,462 
 -   4,586,919   4,580,660   4,434,993 
 -   1,739,550   7,422,660   2,822,561 
 -   192,000   192,000   53,353 
 -   8,557,955   8,745,465   8,400,402 
 -   1,030,509   1,019,520   1,111,528 
 -   184,168   50,000   158,579 
 -   8,151   106,573   1,157,332 
 -   2,832,925   2,397,259   2,998,801 
 -   32,830,910   38,208,083   34,341,467 
    
 -   3,102,684   3,102,549   3,073,390 
 (14,942)   13,115,361   13,918,702   12,610,610 
 -   11,402,643   12,326,772   11,334,224 
 -   1,366,547   1,469,724   1,435,760 
 -   (4,309,851)   (4,414,432)   (4,343,833) 
 -   1,030,509   1,019,520   1,111,528 
 -   3,506,352   3,286,854   3,285,105 
 -   11,504   -   74,470 
 (14,942)   29,225,749   30,709,689   28,581,254 
 14,942   3,605,161   7,498,394   5,760,213 
 -   27,051   -   84,990 
 -   210,742   1,758,158   190,634 
 -   (1,836,733)   (1,749,656)   (1,819,543) 
 -   (5,728,906)   (14,347,737)   (7,148,494) 
 (98,328)   (98,328)   -   (52,479) 
 -   (24,171)   -   (32,230) 
 83,386   3,845,184   6,840,841   3,016,909 
 -   533,521   (1,477,330)   503,146 
 -   (803,331)   (2,104,393)   803,321 
 (83,386)   79,530   -   (13,756) 
 -   (3,506,352)   (3,286,854)   (3,285,105) 
 -   (12,304)   -   - 
 -   (345,606)   1,259   4,320 
 -   -   -   4,320 
 -   (24,171)   -   (32,230) 
 -   23,269   26,477   (724,535) 
$ -  $ (210,260)  $ -  $ 276,390 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
General Revenue Fund 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule 3 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 

General 
government 

Schedule 4 

Protective 
services 

Schedule 5 

Transportation 
services 

Schedule 6 

Revenue    
Grants in lieu of taxes $ 57,282  $ 1,167 $ 43 
Tax requisitions  1,482,111   2,218,877  1,629,402 
Frontage and parcel taxes  -   -  - 
Conditional grants and transfers  49,160   -  672,641 
Unconditional grants and transfers  192,000   -  - 
User fees and service charges  3,047   24,073  650,191 
Member municipality debt  1,030,509   -  - 
Investment income  59,617   8,668  4,507 
Developer contributions  -   -  - 
Other revenue  361,191   7,509  72,071 

Total Revenue  3,234,917   2,260,294  3,028,855 
Expenses    

Administration  407,181   234,612  314,496 
Wages and benefits  2,576,924   734,925  1,896,882 
Operating  1,350,621   756,745  1,826,966 
Debt charges - interest  136,541   21,344  18,266 
Internal recoveries  (2,759,628)   -  (1,288,914) 
Debt charges member municipalities  1,030,509   -  - 
Amortization  308,990   321,951  124,238 
Loss from sale of asset  -   -  - 

Total Expenses  3,051,138   2,069,577  2,891,934 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  183,779   190,717  136,921 

Add: Proceeds from sale of assets  17,583   2,500  - 
Add: Proceeds from long term debt  41,304   169,438  - 
Less: Debt principle repayment  (259,520)   (222,805)  (34,447) 
Less: Acquisition of tangible capital assets  (129,274)   (273,737)  (26,147) 
Less: Change in Land held for resale  -   -  - 

Increase (Decrease) in Financial Equity  146,128   133,887  (76,327) 
Transfer to / (from) reserves  173,240   246,381  56,025 
Transfer to / from appropriated surplus  (165,039)   (71,314)  (9,100) 
Transfer to / from unfunded liability  -   -  - 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  (308,990)   (321,951)  (124,238) 
Transfer to/ (from) unfunded loss on asset  -   -  - 
Transfer to/(from) other funds  -   -  - 
Interfund transfers  (101,255)   1,409  78,758 
Other transfers  -   -  - 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  7,882   (3,808)  96,808 
 $ (248,034)  $ (15,396) $ 21,926 
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Environmental 
services 

Schedule 7 

Public health 
services 

Schedule 8 

Planning and 
development 

services 

Schedule 9 

Recreation and 
cultural 
services 

Schedule 10 
Actual 
2011 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

Restated 
(Note 3) 

       
$ -  $ -  $ 222  $ 447 $ 59,161 $ 54,787  $ 61,415 
 865,686   203,175   1,082,459   6,157,446  13,639,156  13,639,159   13,141,462 
 -   -   -   1,650,407  1,650,407  1,649,785   1,649,347 
 7,331   3,500   23,862   711,690  1,468,184  2,605,873   1,646,647 
 -   -   -   -  192,000  192,000   53,353 
 2,367,190   34,025   625,837   1,812,359  5,516,722  5,711,300   5,525,886 
 -   -   -   -  1,030,509  1,019,520   1,111,528 
 76,229   1,745   1,301   5,944  158,011  50,000   143,486 
 -   -   -   -  -  -   255,348 
 58,388   614   14,389   252,621  766,783  1,550,187   1,611,487 
 3,374,824   243,059   1,748,070   10,590,914  24,480,933  26,472,611   25,199,959 
       
 319,150   28,174   371,680   827,265  2,502,558  2,502,423   2,418,195 
 839,811   62,467   1,395,470   3,648,554  11,155,033  11,709,283   10,716,318 
 2,073,012   166,710   318,339   3,210,738  9,703,131  10,251,889   9,460,746 
 7,899   -   133   1,043,654  1,227,837  1,294,472   1,295,310 
 -   -   (260,805)   -  (4,309,347)  (4,414,432)   (4,343,833) 
 -   -   -   -  1,030,509  1,019,520   1,111,528 
 45,621   108   20,230   1,201,363  2,022,501  1,918,879   1,916,415 
 (600)   -   132   -  (468)  -   29,159 
 3,284,893   257,459   1,845,179   9,931,574  23,331,754  24,282,034   22,603,838 
 89,931   (14,400)   (97,109)   659,340  1,149,179  2,190,577   2,596,121 
 900   -   4,868   -  25,851  -   5,829 
 -   -   -   -  210,742  355,658   109,936 
 (32,866)   -   (3,446)   (1,074,853)  (1,627,937)  (1,495,855)   (1,628,106) 
 (89,451)   -   (25,837)   (1,280,746)  (1,825,192)  (4,888,056)   (3,235,701) 
 -   -   (24,171)   -  (24,171)  -   - 
 31,486   14,400   145,695   1,696,259  2,091,528  3,837,676   2,151,921 
 50,356   (9,169)   (12,132)   (129,138)  375,563  (589,483)   383,868 
 (101,971)   (4,000)   (54,708)   (43,818)  (449,950)  (1,346,676)   65,868 
 162,916   -   -   -  162,916  -   (33,763) 
 (45,621)   (108)   (20,230)   (1,201,363)  (2,022,501)  (1,918,879)   (1,916,415) 
 -   -   (132)   -  (132)  -   - 
 -   -   -   (346,686)  (346,686)  -   - 
 2,091   -   261   3,494  (15,242)  (4,213)   (1,312) 
 -   -   (24,171)   -  (24,171)  -   - 
 (43,490)   (1,123)   (4,417)   (33,484)  18,368  21,575   (505,716) 
$ 55,767  $ -  $ 30,166  $ (54,736) $ (210,307) $ -  $ 144,451 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
General Revenue Fund - General Government Services 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule  4 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 Administration Finance 

General Office 
Building 

Maintenance 
Human 

Resources 
Information 

Services 

Revenue      
Grants in lieu of taxes $ 57,282 $ - $ -  $ - $ - 
Tax requisitions  1,053,737  -  -   -  - 
Conditional grants and transfers  46,500  -  -   -  - 
Unconditional grants and transfers  192,000  -  -   -  - 
User fees and service charges  509  -  -   -  - 
Member municipality debt  -  -  -   -  - 
Investment income  58,273  267  307   420  350 
Other revenue  206,316  -  18,839   -  1,050 

Total Revenue  1,614,617  267  19,146   420  1,400 
Expenses      

Administration  332,570  -  8,650   -  - 
Wages and benefits  1,115,041  683,563  22,535   271,496  331,294 
Operating  518,051  122,494  131,519   142,211  115,639 
Debt charges - interest  148  -  141,961   -  (5,568) 
Internal recoveries  (457,362)  (840,359)  (422,540)   (388,240)  (651,127) 
Debt charges member municipalities  -  -  -   -  - 
Amortization  12,082  3,709  107,433   528  176,992 
Loss from sale of asset  -  -  -   -  - 

Total Expenses  1,520,530  (30,593)  (10,442)   25,995  (32,770) 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  94,087  30,860  29,588   (25,575)  34,170 

Add: Proceeds from sale of assets  50  -  17,533   -  - 
Add: Proceeds from long term debt  -  -  -   -  41,304 
Less: Debt principle repayment  (2,274)  -  (140,637)   -  (116,609) 
Less: Acquisition of tangible capital assets  -  -  (21,230)   -  (108,044) 

Increase (Decrease) in Financial Equity  (91,863)  (30,860)  114,746   25,575  149,179 
Transfer to / (from) reserves  6,145  66,124  29,895   2,772  68,304 
Transfer to / from appropriated surplus  (862)  (31,555)  -   (23,023)  (40,490) 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  (12,082)  (3,709)  (107,433)   (528)  (176,992) 
Interfund transfers  145  -  (92,989)   34  - 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  130  -  55,779   (4,829)  - 

Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ (98,387) $ - $ (2)  $ 1 $ 1 
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Feasibility 
Studies Grants in Aid 

SCRHD 
Administration UBCM Fiscal Services

Actual 
2011 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

        
$ -  $ -  $ -  $ - $ - $ 57,282 $ 54,787  $ 60,461 
 41,445   305,474   -   81,455  - 1,482,111  1,501,043   1,381,364 
 2,660   -   -   -  - 49,160  69,318   54,295 
 -   -   -   -  - 192,000  192,000   53,353 
 2,538   -   -   -  - 3,047  -   1,298 
 -   -   -   -  1,030,509 1,030,509  1,019,520   1,111,528 
 -   -   -   -  - 59,617  50,000   65,098 
 -   2,500   108,457   24,029  - 361,191  381,757   367,041 
 46,643   307,974   108,457   105,484  1,030,509 3,234,917  3,268,425   3,094,438 
        
 1,000   32,703   30,000   2,258  - 407,181  407,181   383,671 
 19,766   -   78,678   54,551  - 2,576,924  2,888,814   2,466,452 
 26,917   240,959   -   52,831  - 1,350,621  1,687,056   1,416,683 
 -   -   -   -  - 136,541  155,753   155,239 
 -   -   -   -  - (2,759,628)  (2,957,665)   (2,855,328) 
 -   -   -   -  1,030,509 1,030,509  1,019,520   1,111,528 
 -   8,246   -   -  - 308,990  299,549   299,549 
 -   -   -   -  - -  -   26,543 
 47,683   281,908   108,678   109,640  1,030,509 3,051,138  3,500,208   3,004,337 
 (1,040)   26,066   (221)   (4,156)  - 183,779  (231,783)   90,101 
 -   -   -   -  - 17,583  -   - 
 -   -   -   -  - 41,304  51,074   51,074 
 -   -   -   -  - (259,520)  (251,767)   (264,621) 
 -   -   -   -  - (129,274)  (166,801)   (73,186) 
 1,040   (26,066)   221   4,156  - 146,128  599,277   196,632 
 -   -   -   -  - 173,240  (5,801)   55,655 
 (38,485)   (1,196)   3,872   (33,300)  - (165,039)  (293,976)   131,345 
 -   (8,246)   -   -  - (308,990)  (299,549)   (299,549) 
 (8,445)   -   -   -  - (101,255)  (7,893)   (8,878) 
 21,730   (60,745)   (4,093)   (90)  - 7,882  7,942   (40,911) 
$ (24,160)  $ (96,253)  $ -  $ (29,234) $ - $ (248,034) $ -  $ 34,294 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
General Revenue Fund - Protective Services 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule 5 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 

Gibsons and 
District Fire 
Protection 

Roberts Creek 
Fire Protection

Halfmoon Bay 
Fire Protection

Egmont Fire 
Department Smoke Control

Revenue      
Grants in lieu of taxes $ 313 $ 147 $ 585  $ 122 $ - 
Tax requisitions  536,151  377,006  380,433   78,467  3,044 
Conditional grants and transfers  -  -  -   -  - 
User fees and service charges  -  75  -   -  - 
Investment income  4,003  1,986  592   157  - 
Other revenue  -  -  -   570  - 

Total Revenue  540,467  379,214  381,610   79,316  3,044 
Expenses      

Administration  53,498  33,970  30,359   8,153  749 
Wages and benefits  249,381  77,657  78,729   4,041  - 
Operating  156,593  136,655  153,275   39,380  10 
Debt charges - interest  (456)  (14,268)  (1,054)   4,515  - 
Amortization  98,167  84,426  88,070   20,717  - 
Loss from sale of asset  -  -  -   -  - 

Total Expenses  557,183  318,440  349,379   76,806  759 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  (16,716)  60,774  32,231   2,510  2,285 

Add: Proceeds from sale of assets  -  -  -   -  - 
Add: Proceeds from long term debt  -  -  169,438   -  - 
Less: Debt principle repayment  (14,299)  (65,670)  (62,906)   (5,172)  - 
Less: Acquisition of tangible capital 

assets  (25,030)  -  (203,278)   -  - 
Increase (Decrease) in Financial 

Equity  56,045  4,896  64,515   2,662  (2,285) 
Transfer to / (from) reserves  45,690  93,461  55,428   6,388  - 
Transfer to / from appropriated surplus  (3,500)  (15,000)  (31,253)   12,000  1,203 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  (98,167)  (84,426)  (88,070)   (20,717)  - 
Interfund transfers  35  1,155  -   -  - 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  (104)  (86)  (621)   (335)  1,082 

Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ (1) $ - $ (1)  $ (2) $ - 
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Bylaw 
Enforcement 

Emergency 
Telephone - 91

1 

Sunshine 
Coast 

Emergency 
Planning Animal Control

Actual 
2011 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

       
$ -  $ -  $ -  $ - $ 1,167 $ -  $ 511 
 118,443   365,998   261,004   98,331  2,218,877  2,218,877   2,238,837 
 -   -   -   -  -  -   (700) 
 400   -   -   23,598  24,073  23,669   20,254 
 356   1,063   308   203  8,668  -   3,432 
 -   6,916   -   23  7,509  -   50,351 
 119,199   373,977   261,312   122,155  2,260,294  2,242,546   2,312,685 
       
 18,110   33,703   42,807   13,263  234,612  234,477   234,795 
 86,333   46,880   129,528   62,376  734,925  752,637   700,004 
 7,614   179,683   63,628   19,907  756,745  938,919   772,285 
 -   32,053   554   -  21,344  54,447   53,062 
 2,213   10,020   14,442   3,896  321,951  297,612   297,612 
 -   -   -   -  -  -   1,616 
 114,270   302,339   250,959   99,442  2,069,577  2,278,092   2,059,374 
 4,929   71,638   10,353   22,713  190,717  (35,546)   253,311 
 -   -   -   2,500  2,500  -   1,109 
 -   -   -   -  169,438  285,658   58,862 
 -   (62,305)   (12,453)   -  (222,805)  (250,353)   (231,773) 
 (25,837)   (19,592)   -   -  (273,737)  (775,000)   (322,171) 
 20,908   10,259   2,100   (25,213)  133,887  775,241   240,662 
 (18,678)   52,363   9,026   2,703  246,381  (228,821)   250,274 
 -   (52,764)   7,000   11,000  (71,314)  (245,770)   (33,328) 
 (2,213)   (10,020)   (14,442)   (3,896)  (321,951)  (297,612)   (297,612) 
 -   164   43   12  1,409  770   850 
 (17)   -   (3,727)   -  (3,808)  (3,808)   (163,039) 
$ -  $ 2  $ -  $ (15,394) $ (15,396) $ -  $ (2,193) 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
General Revenue Fund - Transportation Services 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule  6 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 Public Transit 
Maintenance 

Facility 
Regional 

Street Lighting

Revenue    
Grants in lieu of taxes $ -  $ - $ - 
Tax requisitions  1,474,719   -  33,591 
Conditional grants and transfers  671,441   1,200  - 
User fees and service charges  650,191   -  - 
Investment income  45   95  - 
Other revenue  59,188   10,427  - 

Total Revenue  2,855,584   11,722  33,591 
Expenses    

Administration  279,268   21,226  2,209 
Wages and benefits  1,458,759   384,348  8,891 
Operating  887,007   844,225  24,142 
Debt charges - interest  (520)   18,786  - 
Internal recoveries  -   (1,288,914)  - 
Amortization  49,572   42,531  - 

Total Expenses  2,674,086   22,202  35,242 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  181,498   (10,480)  (1,651) 

Add: Proceeds from sale of assets  -   -  - 
Less: Debt principle repayment  (9,859)   (24,588)  - 
Less: Acquisition of tangible capital assets  -   -  - 

Increase (Decrease) in Financial Equity  (171,639)   35,068  1,651 
Transfer to / (from) reserves  80,045   6,683  - 
Transfer to / from appropriated surplus  -   (5,800)  - 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  (49,572)   (42,531)  - 
Interfund transfers  28,049   6,581  - 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  93,318   -  3,124 

Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ (19,799)  $ 1 $ 4,775 
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Local Street 
Lighting Ports Services 

Actual 
2011 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

     
$ 43  $ -  $ 43  $ - $ 3 
 7,704   113,388   1,629,402   1,629,402  1,471,482 
 -   -   672,641   554,902  619,818 
 -   -   650,191   712,062  650,834 
 -   4,367   4,507   -  2,740 
 -   2,456   72,071   35,365  31,159 
 7,747   120,211   3,028,855   2,931,731  2,776,036 
     
 498   11,295   314,496   314,496  321,596 
 -   44,884   1,896,882   1,931,852  1,822,836 
 6,965   64,627   1,826,966   1,725,182  1,737,837 
 -   -   18,266   21,642  23,387 
 -   -   (1,288,914)   (1,195,962)  (1,237,249) 
 -   32,135   124,238   124,368  121,905 
 7,463   152,941   2,891,934   2,921,578  2,790,312 
 284   (32,730)   136,921   10,153  (14,276) 
 -   -   -   -  2,000 
 -   -   (34,447)   (34,466)  (46,394) 
 -   (26,147)   (26,147)   (132,650)  (201,818) 
 (284)   58,877   (76,327)   156,963  260,488 
 -   (30,703)   56,025   (117,000)  (35,916) 
 -   (3,300)   (9,100)   (14,350)  11,510 
 -   (32,135)   (124,238)   (124,368)  (121,905) 
 -   44,128   78,758   1,947  4,794 
 366   -   96,808   96,808  (22,161) 
$ 82  $ 36,867  $ 21,926  $ - $ 96,810 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
General Revenue Fund - Environmental Services 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule 7 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 
Regional Solid 

Waste 
Refuse 

Collection 
Actual 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

Restated 
(Note 3) 

Revenue     
Tax requisitions $ 865,686 $ -  $ 865,686 $ 818,894 
Conditional grants and transfers  7,331  -   7,331  43,872 
User fees and service charges  1,762,279  604,911   2,367,190  2,361,557 
Investment income  76,229  -   76,229  67,808 
Other revenue  46,990  11,398   58,388  46,227 

Total Revenue  2,758,515  616,309   3,374,824  3,338,358 
Expenses     

Administration  261,408  57,742   319,150  335,659 
Wages and benefits  799,595  40,216   839,811  777,317 
Operating  1,522,902  550,110   2,073,012  2,140,867 
Debt charges - interest  7,899  -   7,899  11,899 
Amortization  45,621  -   45,621  51,596 
Loss from sale of asset  (600)  -   (600)  - 

Total Expenses  2,636,825  648,068   3,284,893  3,317,338 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  121,690  (31,759)   89,931  21,020 

Add: Proceeds from sale of assets  900  -   900  - 
Less: Debt principle repayment  (32,866)  -   (32,866)  (35,806) 
Less: Acquisition of tangible capital assets  (89,451)  -   (89,451)  (65,061) 

Increase (Decrease) in Financial Equity  (273)  31,759   31,486  79,847 
Transfer to / (from) reserves  50,356  -   50,356  - 
Transfer to / from appropriated surplus  (70,212)  (31,759)   (101,971)  140,987 
Transfer to / from unfunded liability  162,916  -   162,916  (33,763) 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  (45,621)  -   (45,621)  (51,596) 
Interfund transfers  2,091  -   2,091  2,150 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  (43,490)  -   (43,490)  (84,063) 

Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ 55,767 $ -  $ 55,767 $ 53,562 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
General Revenue Fund - Public Health Services 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule  8 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 Cemetery 

Pender 
Harbour Health 

Clinic 
Actual 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

Revenue     
Tax requisitions $ 89,842 $ 113,333  $ 203,175 $ 193,987 
Conditional grants and transfers  -  3,500   3,500  - 
User fees and service charges  34,025  -   34,025  30,783 
Investment income  1,259  486   1,745  1,033 
Other revenue  614  -   614  244 

Total Revenue  125,740  117,319   243,059  226,047 
Expenses     

Administration  21,586  6,588   28,174  27,071 
Wages and benefits  62,467  -   62,467  52,314 
Operating  41,465  125,245   166,710  121,483 
Amortization  108  -   108  108 

Total Expenses  125,626  131,833   257,459  200,976 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  114  (14,514)   (14,400)  25,071 
Increase (Decrease) in Financial Equity  114  (14,514)   (14,400)  25,071 

Transfer to / (from) reserves  5,345  (14,514)   (9,169)  5,252 
Transfer to / from appropriated surplus  (4,000)  -   (4,000)  15,000 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  (108)  -   (108)  (108) 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  (1,123)  -   (1,123)  3,804 

Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ - $ -  $ - $ (1,123) 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
General Revenue Fund - Planning and Development Services 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule 9 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 
Regional 
Planning Rural Planning 

Geographic 
Information 

Services Heritage 

Revenue     
Grants in lieu of taxes $ 222 $ -  $ - $ - 
Tax requisitions  144,628  809,227   -  438 
Conditional grants and transfers  23,862  -   -  - 
User fees and service charges  367  51,755   6,760  - 
Investment income  -  844   -  22 
Other revenue  1,300  2,529   9,461  - 

Total Revenue  170,379  864,355   16,221  460 
Expenses     

Administration  51,428  195,212   -  301 
Wages and benefits  83,235  593,029   203,058  106 
Operating  49,625  69,427   82,183  - 
Debt charges - interest  -  -   133  - 
Internal recoveries  -  -   (260,805)  - 
Amortization  -  5,773   8,186  - 
Loss from sale of asset  -  132   -  - 

Total Expenses  184,288  863,573   32,755  407 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  (13,909)  782   (16,534)  53 

Add: Proceeds from sale of assets  -  2,868   -  - 
Less: Debt principle repayment  -  -   (3,446)  - 
Less: Acquisition of tangible capital assets  -  -   -  - 
Less: Change in Land held for resale  -  -   -  - 

Increase (Decrease) in Financial Equity  13,909  (3,650)   19,980  (53) 
Transfer to / (from) reserves  -  3,712   7,536  22 
Transfer to / from appropriated surplus  (13,976)  5,755   (19,000)  - 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  -  (5,773)   (8,186)  - 
Transfer to/ (from) unfunded loss on asset  -  (132)   -  - 
Transfer to/(from) other funds  -  -   -  - 
Interfund transfers  67  88   -  - 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  -  -   (331)  (3,301) 

Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ - $ -  $ (1) $ (3,332) 
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House 
numbering 

Building 
Inspection 
Services 

Economic 
Development Hillside 

Actual 
2011 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

       
$ -  $ -  $ -  $ - $ 222 $ -  $ 149 
 -   50,000   78,166   -  1,082,459  1,082,459   1,067,459 
 -   -   -   -  23,862  23,862   69,022 
 23,155   543,800   -   -  625,837  765,897   718,025 
 -   435   -   -  1,301  -   750 
 -   1,099   -   -  14,389  10,600   14,758 
 23,155   595,334   78,166   -  1,748,070  1,882,818   1,870,163 
       
 7,041   112,962   4,736   -  371,680  371,680   341,825 
 17,850   492,836   5,356   -  1,395,470  1,535,642   1,420,715 
 -   40,352   76,752   -  318,339  414,390   285,277 
 -   -   -   -  133  185   181 
 -   -   -   -  (260,805)  (260,805)   (251,256) 
 -   6,271   -   -  20,230  23,499   23,498 
 -   -   -   -  132  -   - 
 24,891   652,421   86,844   -  1,845,179  2,084,591   1,820,240 
 (1,736)   (57,087)   (8,678)   -  (97,109)  (201,773)   49,923 
 -   2,000   -   -  4,868  -   - 
 -   -   -   -  (3,446)  (3,579)   (3,491) 
 -   (25,837)   -   -  (25,837)  (30,000)   (25,526) 
 -   -   -   (24,171)  (24,171)  -   - 
 1,736   80,924   8,678   24,171  145,695  235,352   (20,906) 
 -   (23,402)   -   -  (12,132)  (30,000)   (9,010) 
 (1,736)   (25,751)   -   -  (54,708)  (177,439)   107,359 
 -   (6,271)   -   -  (20,230)  (23,499)   (23,498) 
 -   -   -   -  (132)  -   - 
 -   -   -   (24,171)  (24,171)  -   - 
 -   106   -   -  261  -   (3,400) 
 -   (3)   (782)   -  (4,417)  (4,418)   (54,961) 
$ -  $ 25,603  $ 7,896  $ - $ 30,166 $ (4)  $ (4,416) 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
General Revenue Fund - Recreation and Cultural Services 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule 10 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 
Pender 

Harbour Pool 

School 
facilities - Joint 

Use 
Gibsons and 
Area Library 

Museum 
Service 

Halfmoon Bay 
& Roberts 

Creek Library 
Service 

Revenue      
Grants in lieu of taxes $ 276 $ - $ -  $ - $ 171 
Tax requisitions  354,339  11,117  504,057   123,391  237,368 
Frontage and parcel taxes  70,200  -  -   -  - 
Conditional grants and transfers  -  -  -   -  - 
User fees and service charges  77,689  -  -   -  - 
Investment income  361  -  1,073   -  - 
Developer contributions  -  -  -   -  - 
Other revenue  55  -  -   -  - 

Total Revenue  502,920  11,117  505,130   123,391  237,539 
Expenses      

Administration  36,643  2,130  38,349   8,556  13,437 
Wages and benefits  258,780  7,053  87   -  - 
Operating  142,375  2,023  517,788   113,835  173,082 
Debt charges - interest  42,392  -  -   -  - 
Amortization  83,304  -  28,245   -  - 
Loss from sale of asset  -  -  -   -  - 

Total Expenses  563,494  11,206  584,469   122,391  186,519 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  (60,574)  (89)  (79,339)   1,000  51,020 

Add: Proceeds from sale of assets  -  -  -   -  - 
Less: Debt principle repayment  (30,215)  -  -   -  - 
Less: Acquisition of tangible capital assets  -  -  -   -  - 

Increase (Decrease) in Financial Equity  90,789  89  79,339   (1,000)  (51,020) 
Transfer to / (from) reserves  (6,864)  -  1,073   1,000  - 
Transfer to / from appropriated surplus  (1,983)  698  -   -  - 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  (83,304)  -  (28,245)   -  - 
Interfund transfers  -  -  (56,514)   -  58,452 
Transfer to/(from) other funds  -  -  -   -  - 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  2,523  (849)  -   (1,000)  (7,604) 

Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ 1,161 $ (62) $ (4,347)  $ (1,000) $ (172) 
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Community 
Recreation 
Facilities 
Service 

Community 
Parks 

Bicycle and 
Walking Paths 

Dakota Ridge 
Recreation 

Service 

Regional 
Recreation 
Programs 

Actual 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

       
$ -  $ -  $ -  $ - $ - $ 447 $ 292  
 3,305,796   1,334,749   97,724   188,905  - 6,157,446  5,969,439  
 1,580,207   -   -   -  - 1,650,407  1,649,347  
 11,471   54,917   625,302   20,000  - 711,690  860,340  
 1,627,456   66,594   -   27,959  12,661 1,812,359  1,743,136  
 3,427   979   -   104  - 5,944  2,624  
 -   -   -   -  - -  255,348  
 196,045   46,353   1,421   8,747  - 252,621  1,101,707  
 6,724,402   1,503,592   724,447   245,715  12,661 10,590,914  11,582,233  
       
 519,649   174,240   18,700   14,417  1,144 827,265  773,578  
 2,648,727   600,833   77,782   55,292  - 3,648,554  3,476,680  
 1,599,460   529,735   9,325   112,918  10,197 3,210,738  2,986,315  
 932,286   58,491   -   10,485  - 1,043,654  1,051,543  
 798,521   244,959   31,081   15,253  - 1,201,363  1,122,147  
 -   -   -   -  - -  1,000  
 6,498,643   1,608,258   136,888   208,365  11,341 9,931,574  9,411,263  
 225,759   (104,666)   587,559   37,350  1,320 659,340  2,170,970  
 -   -   -   -  - -  2,720  
 (935,347)   (87,367)   -   (21,924)  - (1,074,853)  (1,046,021)  
 (617,523)   (37,921)   (625,302)   -  - (1,280,746)  (2,547,939)  
 1,327,111   229,954   37,743   (15,426)  (1,320) 1,696,259  1,420,270  
 (214,826)   70,375   -   20,104  - (129,138)  117,612  
 (10,452)   (33,243)   1,162   -  - (43,818)  (307,005)  
 (798,521)   (244,959)   (31,081)   (15,253)  - (1,201,363)  (1,122,147)  
 163   1,393   -   -  - 3,494  3,171  
 (346,686)   -   -   -  - (346,686)  -  
 -   (23,520)   (9,978)   11,836  (4,892) (33,484)  (144,385)  
$ (43,211)  $ -  $ (2,154)  $ 1,261 $ (6,212) $ (54,736) $ (32,484)  
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Water Utility 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule 11 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 
Actual 
2011 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

Revenue    
Grants in lieu of taxes $ 416  $ - $ 1,041 
Frontage and parcel taxes  2,874,992   2,871,355  2,722,066 
Conditional grants and transfers  271,366   4,816,787  1,175,913 
User fees and service charges  2,866,761   2,858,642  2,705,674 
Investment income  17,457   -  10,493 
Developer contributions  8,151   106,573  901,984 
Other revenue  2,066,142   843,806  1,330,196 

Total Revenue  8,105,285   11,497,163  8,847,367 
Expenses    

Administration  583,250   583,250  636,524 
Wages and benefits  1,897,789   2,111,367  1,816,108 
Operating  1,603,314   1,976,142  1,794,470 
Debt charges - interest  138,710   175,252  140,450 
Internal recoveries  (504)   -  - 
Amortization  1,461,687   1,345,811  1,346,526 
Loss from sale of asset  11,972   -  45,311 

Total Expenses  5,696,218   6,191,822  5,779,389 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  2,409,067   5,305,341  3,067,978 

Add: Proceeds from sale of assets  1,200   -  79,161 
Add: Proceeds from long term debt  -   1,402,500  80,698 
Less: Debt principle repayment  (208,796)   (253,801)  (191,437) 
Less: Acquisition of tangible capital assets  (3,903,714)   (9,250,681)  (3,912,793) 

Increase (Decrease) in Financial Equity  1,702,243   2,796,641  876,393 
Transfer to / (from) reserves  109,756   (697,335)  (4,512) 
Transfer to / from appropriated surplus  (353,381)   (757,717)  737,454 
Transfer to/ (from) unfunded loss on asset  (12,172)   -  - 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  (1,461,687)   (1,345,811)  (1,346,526) 
Interfund transfers  15,242   4,222  1,312 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  -   -  (218,821) 

Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ 1  $ - $ 45,300 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Sewer Fund 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule 12 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 
Actual 
2011 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

Revenue    
Frontage and parcel taxes $ 61,520  $ 59,520 $ 63,580 
User fees and service charges  174,472   175,523  168,842 
Investment income  8,700   -  4,600 
Other revenue  -   3,266  - 

Total Revenue  244,692   238,309  237,022 
Expenses    

Administration  16,876   16,876  18,671 
Wages and benefits  77,481   98,052  73,273 
Operating  96,198   98,741  78,994 
Amortization  22,164   22,164  22,164 

Total Expenses  212,719   235,833  193,102 
Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit)  31,973   2,476  43,920 

Less: Acquisition of tangible capital assets  -   (209,000)  - 
Increase (Decrease) Financial Equity  (31,973)   206,524  (43,920) 

Transfer to / (from) reserves  48,202   (190,512)  123,791 
Transfer to/from Unfunded Amortization  (22,164)   (22,164)  (22,164) 
Transfer to/(from) other funds  1,080   1,250  4,320 
(Surplus) /deficit from prior year  4,901   4,902  - 

Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ 46  $ - $ 62,027 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
General Capital Fund - Hillside Development Project 
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Transfers 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule 13 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

(Unaudited) 

 
Actual 
2011 

Budget 
2011 

Actual 
2010 

Expenses    
Administration $ 8,738  $ 8,738 $ 13,115 
Wages and benefits  16,061   15,206  12,685 
Operating expenditures  70,486   112,300  70,995 

Total Development Costs  95,285   136,244  96,795 
Less: Operating Revenue    

Water leases  52,818   47,000  46,269 
Land leases  18,296   18,000  18,296 

   71,114   65,000  64,565 
Net Change in land held for resale  24,171   71,244  32,230 

Land Sale  -   (71,244)  - 
Total Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ 24,171  $ - $ 32,230 
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Statement of Changes in Reserve Fund Balances 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule 14 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 
 
(Unaudited) 

Bylaw Purpose 
Beginning 
Balance 

Investment 
Earnings 

Contributions / 
Transfers 

Balance at End of 
Year 

 General Government   
504 General administration  $ 13,833 $ 145 $ 6,000  $ 19,978
496 Office Building Upgrades   30,550  307  29,589   60,446
 Finance - operating   25,153  263  65,861   91,277
 HR - Operating   40,122  420  8,352   48,894
 IT - operating   24,575  350  114,954   139,879
495 Bylaw enforcement vehicle   34,014  356  (19,034)   15,336
489-497 Gibsons VFD   382,118  4,003  41,688   427,809
490 Roberts Creek VFD   189,631  1,986  91,475   283,092
491 Halfmoon Bay VFD   56,551  592  54,836   111,979
601 Egmont VFD   14,954  157  6,232   21,343
492 911 telephone   101,505  1,063  51,300   153,868
493 SCEP capital reserve   29,403  308  8,718   38,429
495 Animal control vehicle   18,908  203  2,500   21,611
529 Sunshine Coast Transit   726  8  -   734
 Sunshine Coast Transit - operating   3,594  38  80,000   83,632
486 Ports   412,961  4,326  (35,070)   382,217
486 Ports operating   3,929  41  -   3,970
563 Maintenance Facility   9,082  95  6,588   15,765
515 Pender Harbour Health Clinic   46,367  486  (15,000)   31,853
 Cemetery Operating   -  -  5,345   5,345
495 Planning   8,807  98  -   8,905
 Planning - operating   71,284  747  -   72,031
 PIMS capital   -  -  9,236   9,236
 Heritage   2,054  22  -   2,076
495 Building Inspection vehicles   41,523  435  (23,837)   18,121
590 Community Recreation Facilities   316,343  3,322  (218,148)   101,517
494 Pender Harbour Pool   36,238  361  (7,224)   29,375
609 Gibsons Library   102,420  1,073  113,011   216,504
 Museum Services   -  -  1,000   1,000
 Community parks operating   -  -  11,760   11,760
533 Community parks capital   93,435  979  57,636   152,050
 Dakota Ridge   -  104  20,000   20,104
451 Sechelt landfill operating   -  -  49,457   49,457
  Total General Reserve Fund   2,110,080 22,288 517,225   2,649,593
 Water Revenue   
488 Water utility - capital   862,358  8,177  (195,394)   675,141
 Water utility - operating   192,605  2,018  71,282   265,905
498 Water utility land   182,654  1,913  (168,939)   15,628
589 North Pender Water   29,236  13  37,215   66,464
 North Pender Water - operating   82,347  1,169  6,359   89,875
 South Pender Water   191,389  2,005  (7,296)   186,098
 South Pender Water - operating   182,986  1,917  -   184,903
 Total Water Reserve Funds   1,723,575 17,212 (256,773)   1,484,014
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Sunshine Coast Regional District 
Statement of Changes in Reserve Fund Balances 
Supplementary Financial Information - Schedule 14 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 
 
(Unaudited) 

46 

 Sewer Revenue   
512/608 Greaves Road plant   5,683  60  530   6,273
512 Sunnyside plant   19,750  207  (2,688)   17,269
 Jolly Roger plant   75,689  793  (4,056)   72,426
512/608 Secret Cove plant   49,655  520  (4,121)   46,054
 Lee Bay plant   287,926  3,016  24,415   315,357
512 Square Bay plant   230,514  2,402  344   233,260
 Langdale - operating   29,474  309  3,591   33,374
512/608 Canoe Road plant   5,408  57  399   5,864
608 Merril Crest - operating   5,913  62  2,474   8,449
512/608 Curran Road plant   50,699  531  4,381   55,611
512/608 RC Co-housing plant   8,215  86  -   8,301
608 Lily's Lake - operating   -  -  4,044   4,044
512/608 Woodcreek Park   62,815  658  14,101   77,574
 Total Sewer Reserve Funds   831,741 8,701 43,414   883,856
 Total Reserve Funds  $ 4,665,396 $ 48,201 $ 303,866  $ 5,017,463
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